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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Strategic Report
for the year enced 21 December 2022

The Directors present Iheir Strategic Raport and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022,

Business review and development of the business

Principal Activities } ) )

The Company's principal activity is one of a helding company for the Atafian Servest trading group in the‘Umted Kingdom
arnd the Repubiic of irefand and the Akirion frading group in Eurape. These trading groups provides tacilities management

services. The Atalien Servest trading group is comprised of Ataiian Servest Limiled and its direet and indiract subsidiaries
{which togethar with the Company is herain referred to as the "Groug™).

Ownership

During the perod the Company was 2 wholly owned subsidiary of Atalian Eurepe 5.A., a company registered and
incorporated In Luxembourg and anm indirect subsdiary of La Financiére Atalian $.A4.8., a company incorporated and
registered in France which heads the global Alalian faciities management group (the “Atalian Group™),

Cn 28th February 2023 [post period end) the Company was acquired by OCS Group investments Limited (formeny CO&R
Madison UK Bideo Lid). an entily formed oy Clayton Dubiier & Rice LLP ("CD&R"). This sale formed part of a wider
transaction thal saw the Atalian Group divest of its operations in lhe UK, Republic of Ireland and Asia logether with the
Aktrion trading group {tegether the *Divaestad Business”) to CD&R. Shartly befors cumpleting the purchasa of the Divested
Business CD&R also sequired the entire issued share eapital of QCS Group intemnalionad Lid, the head company of anciher
faciities management trading group {the "0CS Group”) operating predeminantly in the UK, the Republic of Ireland and Asia
Pacific, Managemenl will be planning for and executing the integration of the Divested Business with the QCS Group during
2023 and beyond in a move that will create one of the worid's largest intermational faciliies servicas providers. Trading
grimarily under the OCS brand going forward, the new combined and integrated group will have a tumover in excess of
£2hn, ermploying drca 121,000 colleagues worldwide and aperating in 25 countries. The implcations of the re-branding have
besn assassed by management and whilst do not have a material impact have baen reflecied on the resuits in the 2023
financial statements.

Business Review

2022 was a good year for the Group, with strong acquisitive and organic growth feading to robust financial performance
despite any lingering impatt of the Covid-19 pendemic and the marke? and supply-chain disruption cause by the war in the
Ukramne.

VWhilst existing strategic goals of increasing cash generation and improving profit margins continued 1o have focus, a key
pricrity in 2022 was 1o improve employee angagement and welibeing, The Group 15 3 pecple-focussed business; with airca
28,000 colleagues (on average) throughout the period in the UK and Repubiic of ireland wa recognise that our people are
the driving force bDehind our successes, and 2022 was a year of intentionat, proactive sffor! to improve their wellbeing and
increase engayement. More detall is given later in this report areund the actions taken in this regard, but of particular note
iz the successiul implamentation of phases one ang two of cur roll sul of Wagestream (a 1ol tc allow our colleagues batter
visibility of and early access 10 earnt wages) 1o improve finarcial wellbeing, the training of over 40 additional mental health
first aiders in the period 0 support the mental wellbeing of our colleagues, and the launch of "Meno Meet”, café-style informal
segsions to allow for pear to peer support and the istribution of advice and guidance on the topic of the menopause, to aide
withi physical wellbeing.

The Group completed is first acquisition since the pandermic with the purchase of incentive FM Group Uimited and s
subsidiaries which not only delivered financially but aiso acted as a catalyst for change in terms of operational models and
leadership structure. Whilst some singie service line business operated by the Incentive group was absarbed inte the Group's
pre-existing divisions, given its sirong market reputation as a provider of TFM solutions within the private sector the Group
utifised the majonty of the inceniive business o create a new operating division o provide strategic focus and experienced
oversight to mulli-service contracts within the private sector.

in refation to the Cowvid-19 pandemic, the Group has lamgely retumed o pre-pandemic levels of business aclivity with the
aniy wentifiatie lasting wmpact appearing to be the increased levels of homeworking which has imptications in garticular for
the Group's catering business in 3o far as demand for services within the curporate sacter is concesned. [t remaing to be
saen whether this is a trend that will continue for years 1o come or whether businesses will start (o adopt @ stricter approach
lo requiring employees (o attend office Incations on a mers reguldr basis. Monitoring changes in approach is an achivity that
ihe Group remains actively interested in.

The war in Ukraine continues to anly have limited effect on the pedormance of the Group. None of the sanctions enforced
by the UK Government or applied by other countries has had any impact on the Group either direclly or through its cuslomer
or supply chain. The war has led to significantly higher nflation than anticipated but this is primarity [inked to fuel, energy
costs and food inftation. The nflation levels in the remairder of the supply chain are manageable by the business units and
are not causing increased levels of risk. The recent energy price increases were foreseen (o a certain extery and significant
increases in fuel and yfilities prices were anticipated and allowed for in the Group strategic planning,



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Strateqgic Report Continued
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Business Raview (Conlinuved)

The UK business has aiso revised its new vehicla list to include mure electric vehicles and are encouraging lake up of these
alengside the next vehicle renewal processes across all staff. Food inflalion is challenging at present bul the Group’s
Catenny business has excelient strategic relationships with both customers and suppliers and is undertaking actions to
minimise any impacts lhrough use of seasonal produce, adaptions in service specifications and continued menu
marggement on sites.

Financiai Performance and Growth

The Group achieved strony organic growth in the year with £71.6m of annualised new business revenue won in 2022, with
significant wins in the retail groceries and public sectors. Revenue increased by 19.3% from £666.2m (2021) to0 £830.6m.

Tre direclors of the Company {the “Board"} have conlinued 1o concentrate the Geoup's sales and retention strategies on
wisming and relaining higher margin, mere cash generative business, with focus remaining on sectors that best align with
achiaving those goals. Gross profil margins were 11.0% in 2022 (2021: 13.5%) which is viawed as a significant achievement
given the challenging market conditions resuiling In increased costs and rising inflation, evidencing a comprehensive
approgch o marmgin managemen.

The crganit growth achieved by the Group comprisas a number of significant conlract wing, many of which cormmenced
during the year. The Group is anticipating 2 strong lavel of arganic growth during 2023 due 1o the Tull year impact from these
contract wins m the prior year, as wedl as further new contract wing during 2623. The confinued success of growing turmover
organically can be atiribuled (o the Group's excaptional levet of service delivery combined with further develapment of its
facibiics managemaent offering and broadening ds range of services delivered o new and existing customers. Integrating the
Graup with the OCS Group (as defined above) will also act a3 a springboand for arganic growth from 2023 as business wilh
existing customers has the polentigl for growth as additional service fines and experlise become aecessible within the
enjarges organisation, The Group also expects o complete one or more sirategis acquisitions during 2023 o cement ils
platform for further growth foilowing the successful acquisition of Incentive FiM Group Limited in May 2022

The Group is 0 a nel asset position at 31 Desamber 2022 of £244.2m (2021: £280.7m asset), This reduction is due 1o the
payment of 8 £10.9m dnackend during the yaar (2021: £11.6m ), which was partially offset by a profit for the year of £4.4m.

The Group manages its operations on a givisional basis. For this reason, the Cormpany's Directors do not believe that non-
financial perfermance indicators are necessary at a Group level for an appropriate understanding of the performance and
position of the business, given the non-financial KP{'s differ between the divisions,

Future developments

Managing lhrough sigruficant change will be a key theme for 2023 as the Group merges with the OCS Group 1o create a
combined business under new ownership. A refreshed brand, a new management team angd the communication of combined
strategic goais and revitalised corporate values will, logetber with a continued drive for significant sustainable growth, mean
that the planning and execution of robust change management will be key to a successful 2023. Synergistic benafits of
combining the two groups will need to be killy explored with the intention of erealing a solid, fit for purpose base to suppont
the enlarged operatonal business at an appropriate level of overhead cost. Sysfems and processes wiil aiso he reviewed,
harmonised and unified to allow for efficient and effective working.

Ensuring that our colleagues ame progerly engaged with and rewarded for their hard wark and dedication will remain a prianty,
and the Group will build on the foundations faid during the year to encourage a values-based culture focused on diversity
and pasitive engagement.

The dalivery of strong marging and cash genaration are always key areas of focus for the Group, which will be achieved by
congentrating on the “retain, grow and gain” philosophy — retaining and growing existing business and winning rrew business,
particularly in sectors where there is a focus on operational excelienca rathar than on cost raductions and margin erosion.

The Group will also continue to pursue siratagically afigned acquisifions which contain further synengistic benefils, whether
to enhanue existing service offerings or 1o increase geographical density or to add (o and complement current aperations,
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Strategic Report Continued
for the year anded 31 Decamber 2022

Principal risks and uncertainties

Whilsl the Board sets nisk lolerance and manitors the amount of risk being taken as a whole across the Group, each divigion
and depariment is responsible for the identification and management of existing and smerging risks. Divisional and
departmenial risk registers are maintained 10 captyre risk controts and mitigation measures, and an a periodit basis tranded
risks and risks with high ressdusi risk ratings are communicated to the Board for awareness and review.

Within the pennd thers were same changes o residual risk ratings snd some new risks were captured relevant 10
organisalional changes. The tyber security and data integsily risk was noted as having increased in the period due to the
numher and sophistication of cyber attacks being rapoted generaily in the marke!. A new risk, sale of the Group and mearger
with the QCS Group, was recorded in [he period given the mid-year announcement of the proposed sele. This item is
recorded as 5 standaione risk bul glse impadts existing risks such as the altraction and retention of lalent risk (the uncerteinty
craaled by the merger announcement creates an increasingty difficult anvironment within which to atiract and retain talent).
Much lime has been spent by managemen! in planning adequale risk controls and miligation measures, with structured
plans o diverge fram the Atalian Group and with mitegration planning starting as early as pessible lo define and map
processes o aflow for quick, informed decision-malung.

The prncipal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are considerad o be:

Heaith and safely;

Licuaidity and cash managemant;

Economic cycles and macra econpmic developments;
Cyber security and data integrity;

Sale of the Group and merger wilth GCS Group;
Ereironmental social governance;

Leqgssiative and reguiatory compliance,

Altraction and retention of talent; and

Customer retention and gain

Haalth and safety

The Group has a “people first” philosophy and is committed to ensuring the highest standards of health and safety. A fallure
to maintain hgh standards could resudt in injury or hanm 1o its workforca or thicd parties and patential prosecution and fines,
any and all of which could cause material reputational and brand damage. The Group's business aclivilies are bsoad
(including cleaning, catering, security, building mainienance and repair and design and insiallaton of mechanical and
electricat systams} and it operates in many different types of customer environments {inciuding warehouses, schoois,
healthcare seltings. relail stores, corporate afficss, railway stations and construction sites), so the types of incidents that
could occur are vared. It is essential thal all heaith and safety rsks are thoroughly assessed and undersipod, and
appropriate preventative action (aken.

LR N BN BN N SRR A

in mibgation, ihe Group has a comprehensive QHSE strategy to deliver the right training and education across the Group
and develop safe ways of working, to manitor and audit compliance, and to record and investigate incidents and accidents.
The Group has an experienced QHSE team to drive the right behaviours and 1o provide support and guidance to the wider
business andd has cerfified heaith and safety management systems o provide the framework for delivery of that support.
New tramning modutes were designed and roifted out in tbe period to provide additional training and guidance @ operaticnal
leams,

Liquidity and cash management

The Group needs sufficient liquidity to meet its outgomgs (the maost significant of which ere payments to colleagues and
suppliers) whilsl maindaining adequate resotsce to fund 3cguisitive growth and invest in innovation and continucus
wmprovement. Strang cash management is required as well as approprisle access to external funding.

Clear and reguiar fncus 1s placed by the Group on cash collection and payment leems with customers and suppliers is closely
manilored. Cash furecasting and nel debt reporting are key ipols used W enable informed dacision-making on spend
atiocation. The Group's exiensive public secior customer base continues to benefit cashftow as payment tesms are good
and receigt of payment is prompt.

Due to varous high-profile financial collapses within he :ndustry in recent years, perceived dsk ground the viability of
faciliies management companies in general may impact the Group's ability lo secure extemal himding. However, this nsk
continues o be mitigated by the Group's financing arrangements. During the peried the Group benefited from the certainty
of [re refinancing underaken during 2018 (o a six-year fixed rate debt instrument along with an additional four-year fixed
rate debt instrument that was secured during 2021 at L2 Financiére Atslien $.A.5 level, as this financing has in tum been
passed down 0 the Group at 2 fixed rate and term. Post penod end and after the sale of the Group to CD&R intra-groug
financimg arrangements conlinue in piace as between the Camparny and its immediale sharehoider.
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Strategic Repart Continued
for the year anded 31 Dacember 2022

Economic cycles and macro aconomic developments

General sconomic condiions can adversely affect the Group's fnancial and operational performance in a nuraber of ways.
The uncertainty caused Gy Srexit, for example, has led some businesses 1o relocato outside of the UK and has caused
othurs 10 sither reduce the seope of lhe services they outsource or even pursue in-sourcing solutions, all of which reduces
markel demand for the Group's services. Periods of recession and dowrnium can puut pressure on the prices custorners are
willing (o pay andfer the paymant terms that they are willing to offer. Difficuit aconumic conditions (such as those caused by
the pandemic) can also lead o increased competilion from cther facilities management providers, as larger compstitors ook
1o encroach inte the medium-size customer segment in which the Group mainty operates. Global and national supply and
demand issues <an impact prices such as the increases to fuel and energy costs axperienced during 2022, which in tum
can mpact the profitability of contracts if inflationary increases cannot be passed on to customers mid contraet term. As a
{abour-bagsed business, the Group's Bnancial performance is sensitive 1o the impact of new or amended labour Jaws and
changes in remuneration or berefils afforded by statute (aithough the impact is miligated as far as possibie through well
negotiated contracts. See "customer retain and gain’ below).

The Group manages (hese risks as well as i can by carrying oul dedicated analysis and planning where needed. The Group
aise targels a diverse customer base so as to reduce the effect of a sector or industry specific economic issue that could
peteniially decregse saley or increase costa. The majority of 1he Group's contracts span acress multiple years and despite
the potential Brexil issues noted, no materisl reduction of revenue ie expected. Additonally, the Group has sought to fix
peicing with suppliers as far as possibie to mitigate any price fluctuation due to the risks noted.

Cyber security and data integrity

The capability and adequacy of the Group's [T infrastructure and the abilily to proiec! against cyber-attacks is criticaily
important in ensuring that it has the tools and the operational processes 1o mest its contractuat abligations and 1o function
effectively and efficiently as a business, delivering vakie to both our customers and our sharehoider. The Joss of lunctionality
of 2 core systern or the Jogs or corruplion of dala would cause significant disruption fo the business and would damage the
Group's repulation with customers and other third parties. Should the loss of functionaiity or data be causad maliciously the
Group may aiso incur sigmificant financial expense in recovering the same.

Where legacy systems are sill in use across the Group there is 3 risk that they will be prone to failure and become
unsupportable as spares become more ditficult to scurce. To mitigale the risk that pases, the Group has warked through a
decammissioning programme 0 move more core systems into the coud, and it has invested in techavlogy (o improve
resiiience and protect against cyber threats. Information sacurity has been a regulae focus, with collaagues required to
undertake awareness lralning on a regular basis and emphasis on security by design. Significant work has contaued in lhe
year W hamonize the Group's accounting platiorms (o achieve consistent, tmely reporting across all business unpits,

Sale of the Group and merger with 0CS

tt was announced in the year that the Group wouid form part of the Divesled Businesa being sold by the Atalan Group to
CD&R. On the 28" February 2023 this lransaction was compieted. Breaking away from the Atalian Grouy gives risa to a
number of divergencs tisks such as the nead o migrate data out of shared systems and inio new envircnments and the
need to establish replacement group function support previously provided by the Atalian Group. News of change such as
this aiso creales uncerainty lor collsagues which could lead {o key talent choosing to leave their employment, and customers
could also question the impact on service delivery to them. These risks have been mitigated wilh robust planning, the
establishment of a transitional services agreemont with the Atalian Group for the provision of any necessary On-Gaing
suppart, and dinlogue with colfeagues and customers at pertinent milestones to keep them updated.

Separately to the divermence from the Atalian Grouo, the subseguertt planned merger with the OCS carrles ils own risks
such as mirmising any uncertainty and negative impact for colleagues, customers and other stakeholders, migrating onio
common sysiems, platforms and process effeciively and efficiently without loss of dala or operaticnal disruption and
achieving anticipated synergy largets to recognise value for sharcheiders. To manage these rigks an experienced integration
project team has besn astablished which will utilise good govemnance and project management tools to control and moritor
Ihe progress of this majsr change project in conjunction with dedicated worksiream leads wiho will represent business
divisions and functions. Continued regular dizlogue with colleagues and customers is key and & communication workstream
has baen crealed (o help manage this aspect.

[+13
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Environmental socfal governance

A proactive and comprehensive approach to the management of environmental social governance risks has inGreased in
imporance 1t tecent years and during the penod. The Group must remain compliant with relevant reporting requirements
anf topical lsgistation which Is aver eveiving and inust be abie 1o achisve its carbon neytral targets bolh for reason of
eagaging in sustainable business practices bul also to avoid reputational damage assocated with failing to achieve, The
availability of external funding 1s increasingly linked to swecessiul achievernent of meircs on these tapics, sa the Group
enhanced its resources both in terms of personnel and systems in the period in orer 1o better miligate this nsk.

Colleague voluntesring hours incressad in the period with participation in schemes lo support regular reating with school
aged children, trae planting days and assistance at local foodbanks.

Legisiative and reguistory compliance

Compliznce with laws and regulations is of utmosl importance to the Group, especialfy those laws and regulations cenfred
around heaith and safety given its "people first” approach. Failure 1o comply with laws and regulations could imeparably
darnage the Group's repulation and undermine relationships with its customaers, as well as expoesing the Group to grosecufion
andior fines.

Whifst the Group maintains an exlensive insurance programene (o protect against financial kabdities, there are some liabliibes
thal are incagable of insuring against and s preventing the liability from occurring i, 3s aver, the best way o mitigate this
ask. The Geoup conlinues 1o mvest in its intermal legal and compliance lesms to epsure that it has the sight skills and
exparience in place o guide the business through what is 3 complex and changeable legistative and regulatory fandscape.
Trainng and awareness programmes remain vitally impontant, and monitaring complettan of iraining courses has been made
gasier by improvemaents 1o the Groug's e-leaming platform.

Emphasis is placed on compliance with applicable ant-corrupion and ant-dribery laws (including the Bribery Act 2010) and
with laws codifying ethical and social justics obfigations {inclutiing the Modem Stavery Act 2015). The Group is cammitted
10 acting athically and wilh the integrity in ail business dealings and relationships, and to implementing and enforcing effective
systems and conltols o ensure \hat carrupt and unethicai behaviours play no pert in the Group's operafions. A
whistleblowing policy for the UK s available for all colleagues on the Group's intemal inlranet and is included in the Graup's
Colisague Handbook. Mandatory anti-cormupiion training for senicr management run by exlemal legal advisors was also
conducted during 2021

The internal control anvronment within the Group's Projects divigion remams under close supervision, with continued plans
o strengthen and improve il during 2023.

Attraction and retention of talent

Altracion and retention of key management is seen as a key risk lo the Group in tesms of enswring the business has the
appropriale depth of @atent to suppar plans for growth. The ioss of existing tatent would result in a loss of knowledge and
gxpeartise which may disrup! business and mmpact the overall operation of the Group. With attraction and retention of key
managemeant and the wider warkforce in mind, the Group prionlised improving the welibeing of and engagement with
colleagues during the panod with a siructured approach 1o introducing new benefits and providing support on the topics of
mental, physical, financial and social wellbeing. Interactive Q&A sassions ware heid with the executive commities throughout
the year o increase cpporiunities for engagement, Interview training has been given fo hirfing managers and emphasis has
been plarced on removs! of any barriers o equality Ihrough the lsunch of CHROMA (our Board sponsored networks focussed
on ensuring diversity and inclusion in the workplace  CHROMA stands for Creating Harmony, Respacting Others, Making
Allies ).

Custorner retenticn and gain

The Group recognises the ongoing challenge o dediver quaity services to customers at compelitve rates and # has
demonsirated its capabilities in this asea through the organic growth within its existing customer basa and ils success in
winning new contracts. The Group is focussad on enterng into contracts that will perfarm well inancially by, amongst other
things, mamntaining a low level of operaticnal gearing within the profit and loss account and by recognising the factors that
are likely (o result in cost increases during the life of our contracts (such as minimum wage increases) and loking to include
cantractual mechanisms 1o pass such costs hack 1o the relevant customer By way of a price increasa in order (o aveid loss
of margin.

Thus drive: jo enler inlo strong, profitable conbacts heips o provide the best foundation from which the Group's oparationai
teams can take on the montle and deliver service excellenca as, once mohilised, the Group needs ta be confident it can
perform its contractual shligatians so as o meet customer expeciations. Failure to do so would expose the Group lo the sisk
of cusiomer and contract iosses (either during the term of a contract or on renewat} and could even prevent the Group from
bigdiny for new opportunidies within the public sector (a3 sector in which the Group has a significant presence as g faciiities
management service providar), In terms of the steps taken pre-confract commencement to mitigate this risk, the
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Customer retention and gain [Conlinued}

estabiishment of a robust contract review and bid sign-off process ailows for rigorous checking and chatlengs of sclutions
and pricing models which in itself substantialty mitigates this risk, cormplemented by a detailed mobilisation process upon
canlract aware. in termas of lhe steps taken post-coniract commencement (o mitigate this dsk, the Group's axperienced and
capable operationzi taams gre fraived lo run coniracts both 10 budgets and 1o contract terms, and they work to deveiop
strong refationghips with custumers in order o remain the supplier of choice. Financial and operational performance of
veniracts is closely monitored and reviewsd on a menthly basis at Board level.

Section 172{7) statement

The fotlowiny disclosure forms the staternant required under section 414CZA of the Compantes Act 2006 {the "Act™) and
sets out how the Board has considered stakeholder views and met the requirements of Seclion 172(1) of the Act In Board
discussions and decision-making throughout the financial year.  expiains how the Board has engaged with key stakehclders
and how material decisions have been reached, what the likely impact of those decisions are, and how the views of
stakehoiders have been considered in the decision-making process.

Stakeholder Engagement

Building strang ralationshps with kay slakeholders is imperative to the long-erm success of the business, and the Group
recognises thal i is only by engaging with stakehoiders that it can understand the issucs thal matter lo them and make
responsible, sustainable decisions that have regard for their interests. As the Company is the head of the Group, daecision-
making by the Board aimosi always effects stakeholders of each company int ihe Group as many decisions serve o set
Group-wide poficies, praclices and behaviours that are implemented by each member of the Group. Accordingly, the
stakeholder groups fisted below are both the Company's and the Group's key stakeholder groups, and the gngagement
detaled is engagemant with the relevant slakeholder group for each member of the Group.

Why they matter The Group employs approximatety 28,000 peaple in the UK aad ireland. As a pravider of
; oulsourced facifities management services that is largely depsndent upon labour, people
: are key to the succsssful delivery of its services. Engaging with its peopie to provide hem !
with information on matters of concem to them, o obiain their viaws, lo encourage |
involvement and o achieve 3 common awareness of business successes and challenges ©
,: is erifical in ensuring that the Group has an engaged and enthused workforce, ’
- What matters to them Acknowledgment; recognition and reward: workpiuce salety; equaily fair treatment and
) oppartunity; an alignmenl between personal and Company valuas; feeling involved and
engaged; regular and consistent communication: health and wali-being; coportunilies for
, persanal development, job security, R — )

Exampies of how the Group engsged and responded fo matters of concern for this
stakeholder group, logether with exampies of initiatives that continued (o progress in the |
. year, are as lollaws: 1

H

. Workforce [ S R |
E

" Mow the Group engages
! and responds

a whele Group colleagus survey was launched in the period with collesgues i
invited to give feedback on lopics relatad 1o wellbeing, developmery opportunities,
job satisfaction and diversity and nclusion; :

- the Group's innovaton challenge, the “Dne” {an intemal cormpetiion to inspirs and

; annage with the workforee) ran again in 2022 with colleagues from ait areas of the

‘ business invited o submil their ideas for innovation, with 5 finalists prasanting
their cancegpt lo the Board. Run as a competitive challenge, colleagues were
invited to submit ideas for the opportunity o develop the idea with the help of a
coach {semor empioyees from the wider business) and to ultmalely present the
idea to the Board;

the Group continued to improve and adveriise its learning and development brand.
“Ogportunity”. lo place emphasis on training and education with a view o
enhancing career development cpportunties for the workforce; .

CHROMA, the Group's codlpague-led diversity & inclusion platform, conbnued 1o |
grow and drive change in the year with commitiae meetings, events, the cascading E
of information and regular awareness initiatives communicated both intemally and
extemaily, Each CHROMA, network is sponsarad by one or mare Board mermbers |



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Strategic Report Continued
for the year ended 3t Dacember 2022
who attend meetings and help to dive change with a view t6 removing bamers 1o
equally good opportunities and to prornole an inclusionary environment, with the
intiative recogmised at the annual IWFM awartds (winning the Instituie of
Workplace and Facilites Management 2021 Dwersity initiative Award);

Interactive Q&A sessions with the execulive committee were run during the pencd
with differgnt teams invited to come and put thesr questions and discussion topics
to the senior feam to tatk aboyt matters of importance o them,

" Outcomes and actions |

following engagement The following outeopmes and actions resulted from engagement wilh the Group’s workioree:

ST -

the Boarg reviewed and reviszed colleague banafils n response 1o feedback. Refer
to principal decision 2 below:

a new occupational health scheme was impiemenied to better support colleagues
back into work; 1

In rEsponse to the matonal mpact of inflation on the cost of living and the concems ¢
raised by colleagues in the Q&A sessions and via the colleague engagement |
survey, the Group ran a dedicated financial welibeing waak during 2022, putting
on sessions with pariners such as Wagestream and Aon o discuss financial
managemsent ips, budgeting skills and pensions assentials;

a continuing request from empicyees in the period was for more awareness of the
rewards and benefits available fo them. Following the successful running of a
similar campaign in 2021, the Group ran a campaign during December 2022 o
datly communicate to amployess regarding the benefits and rewards on offer.

[

; Customers ) T R e

Why they matter The Group aims to become a trusted partner Lo ils customers, To achieve this, the Group

© strives o deliver service exceilence in & susitainable way and engage effactively with ils

customer base to understand each cusiomers wants and needs. Strong cuslomer
relaticnships lay the foundation for long-term success and so is of criical importance 1o the
Board, :

P

Consistency of Supply: service exceflence; transparency; efficiency, value for money;
frusted long-termn  partnerships,  sustainability; inmovation and  new  technologies;
feSponsiveness.

“What matters to them

Sirgng customer refalionships and the ability o collaborate effectively were key in 2022,
Exampies of how the Group have engaged and raspondad o this stakeholder group are as
follows:

Board level involvement with the customer base has continued in 2022 by way of
a lormat Board sponsorship prograrmme o énsure thatl Customer needs and
contems are communicated lo those responsibie for making wider business
decsions. Many meetings and site visits have been altended by the Chief -
Executive Officer, the Chief Operating Officers and other Board members;

Given the announcements in the perind regarding the proposed change of
ownership of the Group, specific communications were prepared for customers o
communicate kay details to them at pertinent bmes; ;

" How the Group engages
and responds

e e e s s——

Account managemsnl meetings and regular periodic commercial performance
reporting continued to take piace with cusiomers;

insight 1s gathered from print and social media ko understand customer activities :
and priorilees so account munagement leamns are beller informed and able o
solution bespoke supporl;

Collecting feedback from cusiomers.

' Qutcomes and  acti i N

following enga gem:ntﬁn s - The following outcomes and actions resuited from engagement with our customers:
Ouwr catenng division launched a “cook lugether, eat together” indiative with an
education customer n Sepltember 2022 which was well received by pupils and
their parents and helped our cuslomer encourage the positive messages it was
tocking to embed in its school community ,:
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. " Our tearns supparting our palicing and crime customers were called upon (with
: ather suppliers) to provide enhanced levels of cilical suppord during the 2022
national mouming pariad for the late Queen as part of the government’s secunly
initiative.

Qur Cleaning division has worked closely with ore of ds customars within the ras!
industry fo modemnise, optimise and digitise aspects of the tran oparating ¢
company’s cleaning processes, resulling in a series of performance improvements
and enhanced efficiencies, for which we were nominated for an award (the PFM

“Partners n Claan:ng 20‘22 award)

4 J——— P

Suppliars o

‘Afhy they matter ! Establishing a '&é&foxk of known and husted sugp”s;“e}s helps the Group in providing a

nalional sersice at competifive prices. Treating suppliers as partners rather than simply a
supply chain encourages strategic commitments that are capable of being monitored,
managed and developed for the goad of all stakahalders.

et At * it

What matters to them
| relationships; profitabiity: good health and safely culture: payment in accodance with

z agreed payrment erms,

" How thae Group mgagas
and regponds

Opporunites for growth n supply, lusted long-lerm parinerships; collaborative

: Examples of how tha Group angages and responds ta this stakehoider group are as foliows: %
‘ The Group has a clearly defined supphier on-boarding procass, during which |

suppliers are made fully aware of our expectations around ethical supply -

practices, quality and service standards;

To ansure that suppliers are treated as sirategic parners rather than just a supply
chain the Group holds perdodic account reviews and engages n supphier
retationshin management as a matter of rouline;

Whare an area of spend is especiafly large or bespoke, the Group creates a
specialist within the {eam lo look after that spend and become famifiar with the
needs, requirements and practices of that supply base,

individuais in all of the Group's strategic procuremend roles are renuired o obtain
and maintain the CIPS {Chanered institution of Purchasing and Supply] corporale

code of ethics mark in order to remain abreast of the latest developments amd
{rands within the sourcing field. This enables the Group te remain abie to advise
its suppliers of the slandards and commimenis required in & professional

pmmmnt environment.

" Outcomes and actions '

following srgagement The Fﬂﬂomng cutcomes snd actions resulted from engagamen! with our suppiiers:

i

R JR— P -

i

We heid a number of suppiier days in 2022 al our offices as well as on supplier |

aites to encourage aperational stakeholders to meel suppliers and ensure there
were muiliple channels of engagemen! throughoul the supply chain. One such
supplier day was to promote diversily and inclusion within the supply chain and

fncused on areas of :mpravement for both supplier and the Group;

We increased our SME usage by the largest percentage yaar on year during 2022,
warking more giosaly with small businesses and develuping a lean, streamiined
procurement appreach for smafl and medium enterprises. Spedific seminars for
smalt and local suppliers were held (o ensure the relevant suppliers were able to
compty with Alslian Servest poiicies and processes;

A culinary classroom program was launched in year in conjunclion with a food
supplier o the Group, bnnging together farmers and chefs and integrating the
supply chain stakeholders so that all involved beiter understand the challenges

within the supply chain and to create discussion en rernoving waste, improving

communication and ensunng visibility and traceability throughout the supply chain.

Cnmumtxes and Envirunmcﬂi

" Why they matter The Board recognises that in operating a rasponsible business « has a duly o lhe

anvironment and to the commuanities in which the Group operates to drive positive change,
_ CSR (Corperats Sccial Responsibility) by design is a focus for the Group in order o help
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achigve (5 own targets and in order (@ help ds customers achiave their sustainadility
targels. The Group is an empioyer of significant size in Bury St. Edmunds {one of the
locations in which the Group has an office enviranment) and so plays a key role in offenng
ernployment and opportunities for peopie in that area.

Employmen{ tor local ueople‘ invesimen in the local wmmumty envnronmenially mendly
operations; suslainable practices; that the Group are “good neighbours™; suppoert for local
itiztives ard developments; charitable giving.

What matters to tham

How the Group a‘f{’g:‘agé?* N T

" and responds xampies of how the Group engages with and respends 1o this slakeholder group ate as

foilows,

The Group sought opportunites 1o partner with local organisations (local to Bury
St Edmunds andifor incal to key customer contracl activilies or other office
locations) o suppon the needs of the communities in which i operates:

To reguster ils support for the amned forces community the Group continued as a
signatory o the Armad Forces Cavanant, commitling to action to support ex-
multary persopnet 10 careers gulside of miitary service;

The Group engaged with local schools and colleges in and around Bury St
Edmunds to offer wark experence placements lo students exploring carger
cpportuniies;

The Group's catering division ran workshops for members of the communities in
which we provide services to schools and other educational establishrnents o
teach e importance of good nutrition and healthy eating;

Cantacl was prsactively made with vanous (ocal charities to understand how
supporl could be best given (Inancial support or volunteering lime) so that an |
impactiul strategy for charity fundrasing and volunteering days could be devised
for 2022,

H

Outcomes and aclions | - ) _—“‘ z
ons The Ipllowing oulcomes and aclions resulled Prom sngagement with the Group's ;

communities ang environment:

i
,,,,,,, S -
i
{
i

following engagemant

Volunieers allended a foedbank near Bury St Edmunds in the run up o Chrisimas
2022 to deliver donations eoliected from our offices and 1o prepare Christmas
harrpers lor people in he local community relying on the suppor of the foadbank;

A recipe baok containing recipes for iow cost nuilniticus mesis was creatad by the
Group's catering division o help tackle holiday hunger, with over 500 copies of
e hook distributed 10 famiies in need togsther with goodie bags with the
ingredients to cook many of the meais, The book aiso went on sale with 50% of
: the profits invested back into the catening service detivered at one of our primary
; schnol customer siles and the othar 50% of the profits applied to purchase
ingredients for use at other schools where the issue of holiday hunger was high:

‘ i partnership with Bury Town Foothait Ciub the Group has commitied o provide
! professional skills devsiopment for piayers and haip with securing employment
appodunities (Both within the Group and extemally by offering CV advice and
mock interview aining).

Please find the busiresses Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reperting data
disclosed on Pagm 21 & 22

. Government, Regulatars ann Other Authorities
Why they matter | As a large business employing a significant number ul employess working in a vanety of
sectors, the Group's engagemant levels with government, reguiatars and other authorities
{both 2s our customers and atherwise} are high. A number of its service fines and aclivities
, are licensed or requiated (hy the Secunty Industry Authority and the Gangmaster and
i Labour Abuse Authority, for example) and so reguiar engagemant halps to build effeclive

' channals of communicatiun which makes operational matters run morce efficiently.

What matters to them ' Transparency. strung corporate governance and controls, business efficiency. cisar
. reporiing, collaboration.
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{ S e e s

H thy : :
a:: rw:;:;e;up engages : Engagameﬂt with and response to this s(akeholder group dunng 2022 has been via a :

; number of channels:

; Individuals within the Group have maintainad and developed key relationshigs
: wilh cortacts at the relevant authority/regulator and have been proactive in their
; communications, seeking adwice and guidancs where necessary;

The Group necessanly provided relevant information ang notification (o
govammenl departments and regulators as pad of the change of ownership
processes relating io the sala of the Divested Business,

* - Various government bodies and local authorities are customers of the Group, so |

the Group engage:-.. with (ham as customers as well.

”Outcom&s d actho ?W R
following en;:gement ns i The fuiluwing outcomes and actions resuiled frum engagam&ni with the government,

i Tequiators and other authanties:

Particular discussion with government and local authonly customers was had
following the acquisition of incentive FM Group Limited to notify. them of the
acquistion and the subsequent infra-group reomanisation. Refer o principat
decision 1 below;

Continuation of an internal controls project to check and seif-audit the quality of |
key controls within the Group aimed at ensuring goot governance, accountability -
and Lransparem:y‘ '

Sharehotders and Banking Paﬂners
 Why they matter The Board has & slatutmy duty o promote the success of lhe Company for the benefit of !

" itg sharehoiders. As the gwners of the Campany, the direction and approval of the
shareholders in regand fo operationai and francial perfermance and the way in which
business is carried on is both necessary and desirable. Similady, the Group's financial and
banking pariners have a keen interest in performance and results. The agreement and -
consant of both shareholders and financial and barking parners is reguired in artder for the
Board to lake certain actions andlfor make cerlain decisions. :

[ [ . 4

What matters to them " Clear strategy and good exectition; Baancial costs discipline; regulsr detaited repomng. _
strong retms; protecting and enhancing the corporate repulation, .

e . e i

In addifion W the usual reponting methods, the interests of this stakehoider groug have been
responded to as follows:

Perodic planned relsionship meetings take place regulerty with the Group's ‘
financial and banking parners lo allow for information exchange and future
planning:

Warking capital needs were reviewed and discussions with hanking panners ook
place around the mplementation of an exparded invoice factoring facility;

How the Group angages
and responds

New govemance and reporting framewarks were discussed in the penod with the
new ownar of the Gmup CD&R, o take affect upon camp&eﬁon of lhe trarvsacticn j

OQutcomes and  actions

following engagerment The following oulcomes ark actions resulted from engagement mth the Gmups

sharehalders and hanking pariners:

The Board resoived o increase its invaice factoring facility lo support the finanmal
needs of the Group, Refer o principal deaision 3 below; ;

The Board resolved to change the Group's day to day banking pariner to Barclays
Bark pic in order i access facililies appropriate for the Group's reeds. Refer o !
principal decision 5 balow; :
The contnued development of the Group's internai controls project (as detaded
above).
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Principai Dacisions

The Group defines principal decisions as both ihose that are material io the Group, but also those that are sigaificant to any
of our key stakeholders.

n making the following principal decisions the Board considered the oulcome from iis stakeholder sngagernent as well as
the need to mainain a reputiation for high standards of business conduct.

Principai Decision 1. Acquisition of Incentive FM Group Limited and its subsidiaries

In urder to continue to 9row the business the Board resolved o retumn (o pursuing strategically aligned acquisitions which
contain synergistic Yenefits. As a resull, the Groug completed the acquisition of locerdive FM Groug Limited in the penod.
Incentve FM Group Limited and its subsidianes had an excellent reputation in the industry and acquiring it brings proven
service expartise in a number of sectors which complement and enhance the Group’s existing offerings. This acquisition wil
te used as a basa ta drve further growih in the retail and leisure spaces as well and providing enhanced regional and sector
capabiities within the lechnical services and cleaning business areas. The speciatist claning division is also 3 key area af
focus to loak al haw we can expand these offerings and leverage heir capabilities across our exisling customer base.

Principal Decision 2: Cofleague benefils review

As part of the Group's plan 1o mitigate the risk of not being able (o attract andfor retain key lalerd necessary to drive the
business foraard, the Board resclved to make improving employee engagement and wellbeing a key priority in 2022, Part
of the strategy employed to achieve these improvemants was a review uf the benefits offered to colleagues throughout the
business, benchmarking them against not only benefits offered by competitors but also benelits considered market standard
for simitar roles in other industdes, Colleagues themselves were also asked {in a coileague engagement survey) whether or
not (hey were happy with the benefits on offer. After reviewing ihe fesdback, the Board resotved 1o appiy time, resource and
funding to enhancing benefits.

One key benefit introducad n the perod was Wagestream, a financial lool to allow better visibility of earnt wages and the
ability 10 access those wages early. Appropiaty caps wera applied lo the maximum percantage of wages thal could be
streamed early in arder o impesa sensibie financial management whils! sttt aliowing for the banefit to be of use in emeargency
sihuations. Curently over 22,000 colleagues now have acvess to this denefit, with further roll out planned in 2023, Other
enhancements wers made (e benefits in the period, such as the introduction of the ability 1o purchase additional holiday and
an anhanced matamily scheme for some colleagues.

Principal Decision 3: increase to nvoice factoring lacility

Reviewing the Group's working capital needs in the year it was rasolved by the Board that, although current levals of working
capital were adequate for the existing needs of the business, loaking ahead to 2023 it would be beneficial lo (a) secure an
increased working cagital faciity and (b) lbring additional Group companies into the facility. in making this decision the Board
considered the interests of supphers and took the view thal the decision would help to ensure adequate funds are avaiabie
for prampl payment. Maving resolved to increase the basis of #s working capital facifity, certain companies in the Group
entared into an amended Invoice factoring arrangsment effective within the period and additional Group compaties were
brought inte the facility during 2022,

Frincipai Decision 4: Transition 1o new ERP system (Dynamjics 365)

During 2019, ihe Group made the decision fo migrate to a new ERP system (Dynamics 365). The first entides in the Group
want live on Dynamics 365 as of 1 January 2020, wilh the majority of the remaining entities migrating during the course of
2020 and further entities continuing 1o migrate within 2021, The implementalion of the group ERP system (Dynamics 365)
has conlinued dunng 2022. There is one final UK entity set to migrate m 2023 and all UK components ars expecied to be in
Oynamics 365 by the end of 2023. Once fully implemented across the Group it wik lead I enhanced reporting and
afficiancies in fnancial precessing.

Principai Decision 5 Choice of new banking partrer

In the perind the Group resolved o change its day to day banking parner to Barclays Bank Ple {(having first run a lender
process to undersiand the fadiities and solutions offered by different banks to suppont the growing needs of the Group).
Barciays as the successful partner was able 1o sohution fit for purpose support for the business as i entered a time aof change
and could provide transaciional suppor! for day to day banking needs, so the Group began a process to transition banking
facilibers to Barclays which was largely comgleled by the end af 2022,
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Principal Decisions {continued)}
Principat Decision 6. Declaration of dividends

Conmistert with ¢s strategy to retumn vaiue to its shareholder and in ight of the positive business autlook, the Board declared
and paid dividends totalling £10.9m in the pariod, This decision was supported by key financial performance indicators, in
particular, revenue growth of 19 3% from £696.2 to £830.8m and 30 aceordingly the Baard were comfortable in declaring
amd paying these dividends,

Future outiook

A return to pre-pandemic revenue levels, continued growth, the delivery of strong margins and cash generafion are key
areas of focus for the Group in 2023, which will be achieved by concentrating on winning new business and retaining existing
business in sectors wher there is 3 loous on operational excellence rather than on cost reductions and margin erosion.
Systems and process iImprovemaents will continue into 2023 (o ensure the Group's infrastructure is fil for purpose, and in
relation (o its peopie, the Group will build on the foundations laid during the year o encourage a values-based cuiture
foeusad on diversity and posilive engagemant.

The Group will also refum 10 pursuing strategically aligned acquigitions which contain synergistic benefits. As a rasult of this
sirategy the Group has compisted the acquisition of ncentive FM Group Limited in May 2022. Incentive FM Group has an
excellert repidation in the industry and brings proven service expertise in a number of seclors which complement and
enhance the Group's existing offerngs. This will be used as a base to dive further growth in the ratall and leisura spaces
as well and providing enhanced regional and sector capabilities within the Technical Services and Claaning husiness areas.
The specialist cleaning division is also a key area of focus to look at how we can expand these offerings and leverage their
capahilities across cur exisling customer basa.

Managing through significant change and combining the business with that of the OCS Group will be the pimary focus in
2023 foliowing the completion of the salke of the Company to CD&R on 28™ February 2023, Establishing a market leading
facililies management business which delivers strong margins, is cash generative and aftracts and mitains the best talent in
the industry 1s the focus for the Group 50 that 1 is wall placed to continue ils growih trajectory.

Exacuting the inlegration plans well and to time will be of high imporiance to ensure that the Group seltles Into its new
nommat and synemy targets are achieved. wilth quick decisions expecied in terms of leadership teams, branding and
operating medels. Longer term decisicns reganding entity structures, system alignment, oparating praciices and so on will
follow. A strong focus on the retain and gain philosaophy will continue, concentrating on winning new business and refaining
exisling business in sectors where there is 2 focus on operational excellence rather than on cost reductions and margin
erosion. | he Group will alse continue to identify sirategicaily aligned acguisitions to enhance its service offering and expand
iz customer base.

The business had a strang stan o 2023, performing well in the first half of the financial year. The Baard believes that the
Group is well placed 1o operate sustainably, working towards achieving growth plans and performance targels.

This rapor was approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

T. Evans

Director

Date: ¢ JW\j 2033
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far the year ended 31 Decembaer 2022

The Directors present theit Direciors’ Repori and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022,
Principal activities

The Company's pancipal activity was that of a holging company

The Group's principal actsly during the year was that of 3 faciliiies management provider
Resuits and dividends
The comprehensive profit for the yaar, after taxation, amounted to £4.4m (2021: £26.4m loss).

The Directars recommend the payment of an intenm dividend during the year of £10.9m (2021: £11.6m), with no final
dividend being declared.

Diractors

The Directors who served during the year and up to the date of signing the financial stalememts were:

0. Dicksgon

7. Evans

L. Ryan

R. Dutartra {agpointed 28 February 2023 resigned 13 June 2023)

C. Rovhatl (appuinted 28% February 2023 resigaed 13 June 2023)

B. Deschamps {appointed 28" Fabruary 2023 resigned 13 June 2023}

Financial instruments

Please refer to the Snancial assers and kabilifies nots to the financial stslements {pote 28).
Potitical donations

No poiitical donalions were made in the year (2021: £nil).

Engagement with employess

Information is provided to employees through regular meetings. Employees are encouraged lo give their views o
management as the need arises. Staff are kept informed of the financial and economic factors affecting the Group's
performance by formal and informal meetings and through the intermal communication programme involving the Greup's
ilranet and g-shota The Group is committed fa pursuing equality and diversily in all its aclivities. To the extent possible,
people with disabilitios are offsred the same employment oppertunities as other employees. Empioyewss are reguiary
updated on performance against the Group's siralegy and the Direclors are aware of the bensfits in ensuring a
comprehensive understanding of employes’'s views More detailed references (o the forms of engagement wilh empioyees
is containad in the section 172(1) stalement in (he Strategic Report, together with examples of how the needs and views of
thig stakeholder group are considered and have influencad decision.-making by the Board.

Disabied employees

The Cumpany gives fult and fair consideration to the amployment of disabled persons, having regard (o their aplitudes and
abilites, Continuing employment and lraining is provided wherever possible for any smployee who, for any reason, becomses
disabled Oppartunilies are available to disabled employees for training, career development and promotion.

Engagement with suppliers, customers and others

Strong business relationships with customers, suppliers and other third parties are critical lo the long-{erm success of the
Group, g0 a partnership sthus 15 encouraged to creale sustainable relationships. Communication is so often the key o
understanding each party’s wants and needs. That being the case, regular mestings are heid and site visits conducted lo
ensure that there is sufficient oppertunity for dialogue. More delailed referances to the forms of engagement with suppliers,
customers and third parties is conlained in the section 172(1) statement in the Siralegic Report, Ingether with examples of
how the naeds and views of these stakeholder groups are considered and have influenced decision-making by the Board,

Post balance sheet avents
Fiease ses note 32 for luriher details on post balance shest events.
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Strategic Report

The Dissctors have included a business review within the Simtegic Report. Alsp included in the Strategic Repon are details
of tutwre deveiopments of the Company, the principal nsks and uncertainties and a review of the key performance indicators
as assessod by the Directors.

Going concarm

The Group made a profit after tax of £4.4m for the yesr and ifs net asset position reduced to £244.2m {2021 £250.7m). The
Group continued o be liquid and clased wilh a cash balance of £16.2m (2021 £10.9m) Current assels cover current
liabilties by 1.0 tmes 12021 1.0 limes}.

As part af ihe assessment of going cencem the Direciors cansideéred the impact of COVIO-19, the war in Ukraine and the
current inflation lavels on the forecast mvenue, EBITDA and cashfow taking into account the mitigating actions the Directors
have implemented tu maximise the Group’s available liquidity over the forecast penod o 31 July 2024. The mitigating actions
included using the strafugic supplier and customer refationships built during the COVID-18 peried and pro-acively
pegolialing with both customers and suppllers around cost increases and what joint actions can be taken to minimise the
impact of these. The Group has also coatinuad the strong framework of rigorous management of ibs operating expenses and
strong conract management. Through these measures, the Group anlicipeles being able to miligate the impact of these
matters on itz financial results and on its Hgudity with no shorifall,

The Group has taken and continues to take steps o manage ds cash position and maintain its fiquidity. The Directors have
conswered the availabilly of support from ihe lreasury funclion managed by the CCS Group, following the sale of the
business un the 28" of February 2023, and the ability of the Group to sontinue fo provide that suppart. The Group frances
a podion of its working caprtat through a trade receivables sale programme comprising factoring agreements which at the
yuar-end represenied a maximum of £41.3m (2021 £36.8m) worth of factored recewables under a faclity with a fimit of
£85m (2021 £50m} This will provide the Group with additicnal source of funds as required. In addition, the Group has
access o a £117m {2021; nil) revoling credit facility to fund acquisitive growth and working capital requirements.,

On 28 Feb 2073 the antre share capilat and voting rights of Atalian Servest Holdings Limited (ASH) was acquired by Clayion,
Cubilier & Rice {("CD&R"}, a global private investment firm from Adalian Holding Development & Strategy (AHDS) and the
mirorily sharehoiders of LFA. The completion of the ransaction was subject 1o customary conditions, including regulatory
and competition authorily approvals in a aumber of jurisdictions, as a result of the intention of CDAR to combine ASH with
OCS Group another intemational facililies management company headguariered in the United Kingdom and gperating
mainly in the Umitert Kingdom and the Asia Pacific region, The acquisition triggered a change in the funding rmechanism for
the UK and breland group. The pravious Joan facility in place with La Financiére Alalian S.A.S has been settled in full and
replaced wih a oan of £183.68m which covenant free and nat re-payable prior lo August 2024, In addition the preference
shares hald by Lz Financiére Atallan $.A.8 have been acquired UCS Group Investments Lid under the existing lerms.

The shareholders have confinmed that this loan will not be recailed unless the Group has sufffcent funds tu sattle this without
impacling iis going concern sialus, This change in funding arangement does not have an apact on the directors
asgessment that the Group will be able to continue in opertional existence.

As a result of these measures, the Olrectors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources and Hiquidity available and
therefore have reascnable expectations that the Group will be ahle to continue in operational existence for the foraseeable
future. The Group and Company therefore continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing their financial statements.

Directors’ responsihilities

The Dweclors ars responsibile for sreparing the Report and the financial stalements in accordance with applicable aw and
regulation.

Company law requiras the directors to prepare financiat siatements for each financial year. Under that law he directors have
elected o prepare the Group financial siatements in actordance with intemational accounting standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and the Company financial statemenis in accordance with United Kingdom
Adopted Intemnational Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Frarmework
{"FRS 101"}, Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are salisfied thal they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profil or loss of the Group and the
Company for thal periad. In preparing the financial statements, the Directars are required to:

»  salect suitable acsounting policies in accordance with 1AS B Accounting Poticies, Changes in Agcounting Estimates
and Errurs and then apply them censistendly;

+  make judgernents and accounting estimataes that are reasonable and prudent;

«  present infarmation, including accounting palicies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable informaticn;
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Directors' Report {continued)
for the year ended 31 Decambar 2022
Directors’ responsshitities (centinued)

= provide additienal disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in Intemational Financial Reporting
Standards and in respect of the parent company financial statermants, FRS 101, 18 insufficient to enabie users ta
understand the smpact of parficylar ransactions. cther everds and conditions on the Group and Cempany financial
pastion and financial performance,

« iy mespect of the Group financial statements, slate whether UK adopted International Accounting Standards. hava
been ioilowed. subject o any material departures disciased and expigined in the financial stalements;

+« m respect of e Campany financigl siatements, state wheiher gophcabie UK Adopted Intemational Accounting
Standards. inciuding FRS 101, have bean followed, subject 1o any material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

s prepare the financial slaterments on the going concem basis unless i i agpropriate to presume that the Company
andier the Group will not contihue in business,

The dicecturs are responsibie for keeping adequale accounting records that are sufficient fo shtow and expiain the Company's
and Group’s ransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial pasition of the Company and the
Group and enabie them o ensure that the Company amd the Group financial statemenis compiy with the Companies Act
2008 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and laking reasonable steps for
{he prevention and detection of frawd and other irmeguianties. Under appliicable faw and reguiations, the direcfors are aiso
responsible for preparing a strategic report and diractors’ report that comply with that law and those regulations. The direclors
are responsibie for the maintenance and integrity of the corperate and financial informaiion included on the company’s
waebsite

Directors’ insurance and Indemnitiag

The Directors have the benefit of the indemnity provisions conlained in the Company's Adicles of Association {"Articies’),
and tha Company has maintained throughout the period, and lo the date of signing the financial statements, Directors’ and
cfficers’ hability insurance for the benefit of the Company, the Directors and #is officers. The Company has entared into
qualifying third party indemnity arrangements for the benefil of 24 its Directors in a furm and scope which comply with the
requirgments of the Companies Act 2006 and which were in force throughout the year and remain in force.

Corporate Governance Statement

To facilitate complance with reporting oldigations in fhe Companies (Miscellaneous Reperiing) Regulations 2018 {the
"Reguiations™), the Wates Corporate Governance Principles for Large Privaie Companies (published by the Financial
Reparting Council in December 2018) (the “Wates Principles”), given its ltexible and non-prescriptive approach, is adopted
as the Company's corparate govermance code for the year ended 31 December 2022 to help achieve and evidence good
governsncs and responsiblie business practices,

Simdarly, each company in the Group adopted the Wates Principles as ils corporate governance code for the year ended
31 Decemnber 2022 to ensure consislency The Board sets aul below how the Wates Principles have been applied in the
year

Principie 1° Pupase and (eadershp

“The directors shouid promole a weill-geveloped and defined purpose, leading by example, engaging with siakehoiders and
selting a iore rom the lop. They should moritor company culture and articulate the sirategy and business modef throughout
the Company. ™

Strung leadership is provided by the Board which is led by the Chiel Exacutive Officer for the Group and was sugporied by
the managemsit buard of the global Atatian business n the period (post period end and following the sale of the Company
to CDAR, by the exsculive commitiee of the intemational OCS group nstead), as discussed further in relation o Principal 2
helow,

in @rms of purpose, the Company’s purpose is one and the same 2s the Group’s purpose which was formalised by the
board of Alalian Servest Lirmited during 2018 in order 1o guide slmtegy, decisions, behaviours and culture. Whist it was felt
that the defined purpose was simply an ariculation of the pre-existing purpose. the procass of farmalising it i writing and
communicating it 10 the Group brought clarity and enabied il 1o adl 38 2n anchor for decision-making at all levels. Accordingty,
lhe Groug's purpose - “to appreciate and value our partners, defivering frusted susfamnable solutions Irough responsive,
passionate peopie. A reputation for exceffence” - 18 melutied in strategy documents, is discussed with seniar leadars and is
frequenty comnumcated to the wider workiorce by way of inclusion in email updates.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
for the year endad 31 December 2022
Corporate Governance Statement {continued)

Prinuiple 1. Purpose ard Leadership [continved)

To achieve is purpose, the Group draws on its comorate values (integrity, entreprencurial spiril, agility, simplicily and
susiainable development), and # encourages behaviours thal enhance the working environment it tries to creaie (one thal
is opern, inclusive, professional, fair and safe). Significant affort is made to ensure that the Group's values are regulady and
consistenily communicated. For example, the values are wisuaily displayed in its office environments {both via screens and
vatue posters] and regllary feature in internal comrmunications and on the Group's intranet, new programimes and initiatives
are only approved sfter review of 3 proposil evidencing how the pragramme ar iniliative links {o and otherwise supporis ane
ar more of the corporate values. The Group runs an annual competifion for its colleagues. "The One”, which encourages the
submission of new innovative ideas linked to s corporate values, with the 2022 compstition focussed specifically an
sugiainable development. The revised induction process also gives new joingrs an ingight into what the corporate vakies
are ard why they are considered imponiant to the business.

Expcutive members of the Board play an active role in embedding the purpase, cuiture and vaiues in the Group, both inils
office and operational envirnnments,. Sach sxeculive Board member has a visibie presance inn the business and regularly
sngages with different parts of ils workiorce, whether throogh monthly business reviews or project mestings or "on the
ground” days or otherwise. Monthly "Q8A" sestions are held with different teams invited 1o meet with the exscutive Board
members (together with other board members of Atallan Servast Limited) to ask questions and discuss matfers of interest
to them. Success is monitored via the quality and frequency of linking new business initialives and divisionzl sirategies 1o
the Group's purpose snd values, and via channels of feedback o the Board such as the monthly Q8A sessions and
amployes surveys, A colleague engagement survey was made available to all cofleagues | the Group to complete during
2022 w invite feedback fo specific questions on topics such as diversity and inclusion, wellheing, company values, job
salisfaction and development apportonities.

Frincyple 2: Board Composition

“The Company’s hoard should have an effachive chawr and a balance of skills, backgrouncts. experfence and knowledge that
promotes diversity. The size of the board should match the scafe and complexily of the Company, direcinrs should be
regularly evaluated, and companies shotld consider ihe value of appoiniing ron-executfve directors.”

The directars who served in the year and up to the date of the report are as follows:

Danigi Dickson: Chief Executive Officer UK and Ireland

Thomas Evans: Chief Financial Officer UK and iretand

Laurz Ryan: Chief Legal & Risk Officer UK and lrefand

Romain Cutarre: Invesior Director

Chnshan Rochat Investor Direclor

Bruno Deschamps: lnvestor Director

Threw members of the Bodrd are executive directors and thwee members of the Board are investlor directors appainted by
the Company s shareholder, The three invesior directors were appointed to the Boartd post period end to raflect the changing
needs of the business following completion of the sale of the Company 1 CD&R.

As the Company's primary aclivity is that of a helding company for the trading group below i, It is considered (hat the
composition of the Board i appropriate for this activity, cosiplementsd and enhanced by the composition of the board of
Atalian Servest Limited as the lop trading entity in the Group.

Members of the Board have been appointed to ensure a balance of skills, backgrounds, experience and knowledge.

Pringiple 3: Director Responsibiities

“Companies should implernent pobicies that clearly sel out thewr dirpciors ™ authority, accountabilily, role and conduct, Boards
shoult encowage internal challenge and establish robust internal proceduras 10 ensure syslems ard cortrols operale
effectivefy,”

Accountabiiity and Responsibilities: The Board is collectively responsible o its sharehalder for the fong term success of
the Company and the Group that sits under i, and logether is responsible for seiting the overall strategy and management
direction and contrel of the Group. It is also responsible for moniloring the Company's perfurmance and for ensuring that
prudent st efective controls are in place 1o manage risk in Ena with Jdefined appetila,
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Corporate Governance Statement {continued)

Principie 3: Drector Respansibilities (continued)

The Beard gperates within a govemance framework as agreed with ils sharehoidsr to ensurs that decision making siways
takes piace at the right level. Matters to be escalated for higher approval are dealt with in line with this governance framewark
and are either discussed at Board mestings or at monthly business review meetings attended by one or more investor
dirgcetars or on an ad hog basis.

A Boarg-approved delegation of authority and compliance framework will be communicated to the Group during 2623 te
repiace a similar framework in place pror o the transter of ownership o CO&R.

The Campany's shareholder has exercised #is right lo appaint investor direclors to the Board to pariicipate in meetings of
the Board.

integrity of information: As a haiding company, Board mestings are scheduled generally an an ad hoo basis to daal with
specific neads (sueh as the declaration of dividends), with trading reviews for the Group taking piace in the form of monthiy
business reviews altended by one or more of the executive directors and one or more of the investor direclors. The lrading
reviews cover a standing agenda of items o report on key aspects of the business of the trading Group such as health and
safety, legal and dsk, financial performance, operational matters, new business opporiunities and marketing activity,

Principie 4: Opportynily and Risk

"The hoard shoult consider how the Company creates value over the long lerm and identifles future opportunities for
innovation. It should oversee how risks 1o the Cormpany {inciuding reputationsl risk) are managed, which should include
establishing an nternal contral frarmework amd may inciude delegsiing responsibilily to & commiltee.”

Risk munagement is 3 key funcion of the Bcard, which involves balancing pratection of the Group's assels on the one hand
with taking the opportunitias that will maximise the Jong-lerm success of the Groue on the other. The Board aims o set the
right inferance for risk at any given lime G enswre that this Dalance is achieved.

Cipportnities are recognised at all iavels and in ali business areas and are generaily commuricated dp 3 reporting line {o
the approprinte decision maker. Where an opportunity does nut fit with the Group's defined strategy or requires expenditure
outside of an approved budged or requires a commitment from the Group to cartain ferms and conditions then thers are sei
approval processes o follow before the opparunity can be progressed. in parlicular, new customer contracts {and rebids)
abova 1 certam defined valug must be formally presented to the board of Alalian Servest Limited to gnable challenge to the
solution and pricing modet and allow for acceptancs of the commercial tlerms, and new customes contracts {and rebids) thai
contain a certain nsk profile that the board of Atalian Servest Limiled wish to pursue must be escalaled further for approval
by the Company’s sharahdider

Innovation is encouraged by the Group in 2l its forms, with particular emphasis given in recent years to digital and process
innovation. In order to encourage all members of the workforce to submil Keas for innovation the Group opened a new
inifiative, the "One”. in 2020 with the aim of identifying new ideas lo improve our busineds and lo recognise nne of our
cofleagues as being the entreprenaur behind the idea. This competition has been run on an annuat basis thereafter.

The Group's nsk management praclices were reviewed and amended during 2014 1o ansure that inherent and emerging
risks are being identifier, racorded and reported o senior management internally by each of its opersting divisiang and
ceniral functicn depariments. A greater emphasis was placed on the importance of the requirement of each division and
each department lo mantain a iscat risk register (with the support of the centrai risk management funclion) to encourage &
fisk-aware cuflure across the whole business. Key risks from the local risk regisiers are fed into the nsk register that is
presented to he hoard of Atalian Servest Limited on a monthly basis for review and consideration. This risk register is then
available for the Board 1o review. Risks with the highest residual risk rating (afler {aking account current mitigating actions)
have written action plans against which tha board of Atailian Servest Limited {reporting lo the Board) monitors progress. On
a periadic basis wrilen analysis of the key risks on each divisional and departrmental risk register is received lo aide in the
management of risk and the identification of thernes and common issues affecting differen! business areas,

Principle 5 Remuneraton

“Director and seriior manager remuneralicn should te aligned with perfarmance, behaviours and achieving the Company's
purpase and vafues. There should be clear policies to enable accountabilily to shareholders, and some boards may wish lo
create a remuneration commiftes to design execufive remuneration skuctures.”

In reviewing and setling remuneration levels, the main objective is to atract and retain lalent al rafes thal are af least
consistent wilh market standards . In setting remuneration packages for direclors and senior managers smpioyed by the
Company the Board benchrmarks against competitors and olher businesses in the sectors in which the Group operates. i
giso lakes into account any instructions received from its sharehoider and any consideralions imposed by cusiomer
contracts Remuneration packages for directors and seniar managers in the Group not empioyed by the Compary are
subject 1o the process set al Atalian Servest Limited level (2gain taking o accounl any instructions mceived by the
Company's shareholder and any considerations imposed by customer contracts).
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Principle 5 Remuneration (continued)

in reiation to the wider workforce, the Group has a high level of TUPE activily {activity 1o which the Transfer of Undertakings
{Proteciion of Employment) Regulations 2006 appiles), as is usual in the indusiry as service provision changes acour as and
when contracts for the delivery of cutsaurced facilities managament services are won and lost, That being so, a large majority
af the workfaree transfer Mto the Group under TUPE with pre-existing terms and conditions of employmant and levels of
pay. To a large extent the tarms of the commercial contract with the Group's cusiomer will determine any fiaxibility the Group
has to amend levels of remuneration in respect of colleagues assigned (o that coniract.

The executive members of the Board and the wider senior management team in the Group below all have elements of their
remuneration packages that relate to and depend upon realising set key pedomance Indicators. The key performance
indicators are set aniually and concentrate afforts on maiters of sirategic importance o the Group.

The Group reporis under the Equality Act 2010 {Gender Pay Gap Information} Regulations 2017 which requires UK
amployars with 250 employess or more lo produce and reporl 2 Gender Pay Gap Report sach year. The Group has seven
tegal entities within the UK which employ 250 or more smployees {up from five in previous years due to the acquisition of
Incentive FM Group Limited and its subsidiades) and so reported for each of them using a "snapshot date”™ of $ April 2022,
Atalisn Servest Limited. the Group's largest empioyer and trading entily within the Group (which also employs a significant
proportion of the UK's semor teadership team), reporled a 0% median pay gap and a 4.38% mean pay gap for 2022,
signifying an improverment from 2021 {in which the reported mean gender pay gap for this entity was 6.74%).

These resulls show improvement year on year and with the confinued focus on CHROMA the Group is aiming 1 work
towards rizducing the gender pay gap further.

Frincipie 8. Stakehoiders

“‘Diractors should foster effective dislogue with siskehoiders 10 understand the effect of the Cornpany's practices and re-
aiign strategy These stakeholders will include the Company's workforce, customars and suppliers, but may aiso include
regtiaturs, governments, pensioners, creditors ardd communily groups. in particular, the Company should esiablish a range
of formal and informal channels for communicating wilth s workforce.”

Buildimg strong relationships with key siakeholders is imperative to the long-tern success of the Group, and the Board
recagnises thal i is only by engaging with stakehoiders that it can understand the issyes that matler lo them and make
responsible, sustainable decisions thal have regard for their interests.

In the: opinion of the Board, the Group's key stakehalders are its workforte, its customers, its suppliers, local communities
and the environment, govermnments, regulalors and other authorities, and its banking partners and shareholders. The section
172(1) staiemani in 1he strategic reped setls oul in detal how the Company and the Group has engaged with ils slakehalders
and how it has considered the interests of stakeheiders in decision-making.
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

The Group recognises is responsibility to minimise ids impact on the natural enviropment and continues its cammitment lo
redice its energy consumption and carbon emissions, With both 1SQ 14001 and 1ISOS0001 certifications, sustainable and
efficent snergy management is high on the Group's aganda.

Envronmental dala for the Group is delailed below:

2022 2021
Energy
Efectnoity consumed across owneadileased buildings (kwh) 348,580 963,137
Gas consumed across ownedileased buildings (kWh} 277,161 212,898
Fuel used by fleet for pusiness ravel (WWh) 30,715,864 26,118,468
Elecincity used by EV flget for business trave! (kWh) 19,4401 o 9,794
Total 31,961,006 27,305,293

At the beginmng of 2021, afl the Group's offices were closed due 1o the pandemic which reduced nommal energy consumption
and mudmal road travel ook place a8 a resull of warking from home insiruclions.

The smissions and carbon dala presented excludes Aktrion Group because the entiies do not fall into the scope of the
raponting as Turnover is less than £36m and balance sheet less than E13m.

In order 1 improve enemy efficency, the Group has set the foliowing objectives:

»  ansure all activities are conducted in compliance with applicable UK energy legisiation and additional regulatory,
statuiory and other reguirements;

«  monilor and reduee K022 by 10% over the naxt 2 years [ending 31 December 2024);

« improve the energy performance of the Group's Rest.

The Growup is aitearty working to achieve these objectives, wilh the increasing use of electric vehicles and 3 programme of
wnslElaton of £V charge poinls at s ownedileased buildings underway. Planned further acton will be token as set out in
the Group's Carbon Met Neutral plan available at www.atallanservest.co.uk,

in relation to Greenhouse Gas emissions, the Group raports scope 1 and 2 emissions defined by the Greenhouse Gas
protocat as foliows,

«  Scogpe 1 (dirert emissicns). operation of facilites; andg
»  Scope 2 (indirect emissions): consumption of purchased electricity, heat and steam

Graenhouse Gas emissions data in the year were as follows:
2022 2024
COZe tonnes  CO2e tonnes
Emyssion Type

Scopel: Operation of faciiities 7.828 8,255
Scepe 2. Purchase Ensigy (UK) -1 225
Total Emissions 8115 _& 480
Greenhouse Gas emissions intensity ratic.

2022 2021
fotal footprint {Scope 1 and Srope 2} - CO2e k tpnnes 8,115 6,481
Turnover (£m} 830.6 699.5
Intensity Ratio (CO2= k tonnes/Eim) 98 93

The Group's methodology has been based on the principles of the Greenhouse Gas Prolocal, taking account of the 2015
amendment which set cut a ‘dual reporting’ methodology for the reporting of Scope 2 ermissions.

The Group has reported on all the measJred emissions sources required ynder The Companies Agl 2006 (Strategic Report
and Directors Repor! Reguiations 2013).

The perod of the report 1s from 1 January 2022 1o 31 December 2022.
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting {continued)

Thig includes emissions under Scope 1 and 2, but excludes emissions from Scope 3. Conversion factors for UK electricity,
gas and alher emissions are thosa published by the department for Business, Energy and indusirial Strategy 2018,

Pravision of information to auditor

ins the casa of each Drraclor in office at the dute the Dirsctors” Report s approved:
» 50 far as tha Directors are aware. there are no relevant audi information of which the Group and Company’s auditor

15 unaware. and
» they have laken ail ihe steps that they ought fo have taken as Directors in order lo make themselves aware of any
relevant audi inforrnation and 1o eslablish that the Group and Company's auditor is aware of that infermation,

Auditor

The auditor, Emst & Young LLP. have ndicated their wiingness to continue in office and a resalution concerning their re~
appotriment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeling.

This reporl was approved by the Board and signed an its ehalf,

i

e

L4
T Evarns
Director

Date: }g jdj 1‘,1,3



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ATALIAN SERVEST HOLDINGS
LIMITED

Cpinion

We have audited the financal s@taments of Alalian Servest Holdings Limiled ('the parent company’} and ite subsidiaries
{the 'group’) for the year ended 31 December 2022 which comprise Consolidated Satement of Profit or Loss,
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Company Staterment of Financial Position, Consolidated Slatement of
Changes in Equity, Company Statement of Changes in Equity, Consclidated Statement of Cash Flaws, and the reiated
notes 1 to 32, including a summary of significant accaunting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been
apptied in lhe preparation of the group inancial statements is applicable law and UK adoepled intemational accounting
standargs, The financiat reporting framewerk hat has bean applied in the preparation of the parant company gnancial
staterments is applicable faw and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure
Framewark” (United Kingdum Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

i our opinion.

. e Anancat statements give 3 true anid f@ir view of the group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31
Cecemper 2022 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended:

+  ihe group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted intemationat accounting
standards,

. the parent company financial statemenrts have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdor Generally
Accepted Accounting Praclice; and

. the financial staternents have been pregarad in accordanca with the requiremends of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducied aur audit 1 accordance with inlernalional Standards on Auditing (UK) {I8As {UK)) and applicable faw. Our
responsiiities under thase standards are further described in the Auditor's respensibiliies for the audit of the financial
staternents section of cur repart. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirernents that are
refevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to other entities
of publlc interest, and we have fulfilied our other etnical responsibilitias in accordance wilh these requirements.

We beheve that the audil evidence we have oblained 15 sufficient and apprepriate {0 provide a basis fer gur opwion,

Cornclusions relating to going concern

In auditeng the financial statements, we Mave concluded that the directors’ use of the going concem basis of accounting n
the preparaticn of the financial statements is appropriate. Our evalualion of the direclors' assessment of the group and
parent company's ability fo continue to adogt the geing contern basis of accounting included:

»  confirming, in conjunction with our waikthrough of the Group's financial close process. our understanding of
managemenl!’s Going Concemn assessmaent process and updales required foliowing the change in ownership of
the Group post year end;

«  obtaining ang auditing the Direclors’ going concarm assessment, including the cash flow lorecasts for the going
concern review penod 10 31 July 2024 ('the review period’). Cur audit procedures inciuded, cbtaining an
ungerstanding of management’s process of going concermn assessment and auditing the supporting cash flow
forecasts.

*»  3asessing the risks that we considered muost likely to adversely affect the Company’s availabie financiai
resoucas over the gowng concem review periad which included the impact of the current macre-economic
pressures including the gostof-diving crisis, interest rates and inflation. We also perlormed sensitivities of the
potential impact of changes in financial performanca.

s considering the appropnateness of the metheds usead to calculate the cash forecasts, induding comparison of
forscasts to actual post year end trading. We also assessed the historical accuracy of forecasts by comparing
setal rasults to previous foracasts and varified that the future forecasis used are cansistent with the budgels
approved by the beard.

¥
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

{continued)
Conclusions relating to going concern (continued}

« considering mitigating factors that are within the contrel of the Company.

«  understanding the shareholder funding arrangements within the wider CCS group to confirm access and
availability to facilities in the svent that they are required during the going concem review period. This included
understanding the funding terms in the event of any funding deficit and the ability of the company to access these
funds.

¢ reading the going concern disclesures included in the Directors’ Report and Basis of Preparation note in the
financial statements, to confirm they were appropriate and in conformity with the reporting standards.

Our chsarvations are that e Group/company is profitabie and cash generative. In addition to liquidity from these sources,
the Group/company has access to additional fupding from its shareholders. The has a consistent customer base which
provide good visibility of revenuss and cash flows over the Going Cancern review pericd. As a result, we concluded tha
there is adequate lquidity over the Going Concem review period.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent company’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a period to 31 July 2024,

Qur rasponsibilities and the responsibiiities of the directors with respect to going concemn are described in the relevant
secticns of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted. this statement is not a
guarantee as to the group's ability to continue as a going concern,

Other information

The ciher information comprises the information inciuded in the annual report set cut on pages 3 to 22, other than the
financial statements and our auditor’s repori thereon. The directors are responsibie for the other information contained
within the annual report.

Cur opinion en the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in this repert, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thergon.

Cur responsibiity is to read the other information and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a materiai misstatement in the financial statermends themseilves. If, based on the work we have
perfarmed, we conciude that there is 3 material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing {o regort in this regard,

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion. based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financiai year for which the financiat
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

. the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legai requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

1n the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Company and its enviranment obtained in the course
of the audil, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors’ repert.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if. in our opinien:
« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Group and Company. or returns adeqguate for cur audit
have not heen received from branches not visited by us: or
» the Group and Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retumns: or
certain disciosures of directors’ remuneralion specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for cur audit.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Atalian Servest Holdings Limited
(continued)

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibiiities staternent set out on pages 18 to 17, the directors are respansible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financiat statements that are free fram materiat
misstatement, whether due te fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's akility to
continue as a gaing concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis
of accounting uniess the directors either intend o liquidate the Group ar the Company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alterniative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, inciuding
fraud

Iregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by,
for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through coliusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable
of detecting irregutarities, including fraud is detailed befow. However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and
deteclion of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity and management,
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

{continued)
Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud (conmtinued)

Qur approach was as follows:

«  We pbitained an underslanding of the legal and rmqulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Group and the
Campany and delermined that the maost significant are UK adopled mtematioral accounting standards, United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law},
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disciosura Framework ("FRS 1017}, the Companies Act 2006,
and United Kingdan's direct and indirect tax reguiatians. {n addition, the Group and the Company must comply with
uparaticral and employment laws and reguiations including heafth and safety reguiations, envirenmental regulations,
Competition Law, anti-brbery and corruption regulations and General Data Protection Requirements.

= We understoud how the Group and the Company ars complying wilh those framewarks Dy holoing enquires with
maragement and those chargad with govemance. We undersiood the polential incentive and abillty to override
controls, and employese access (o guidance of how to report any instances an non-campliance. We undersioad any
enntrols pul in place by wider group management o mduce the opportunities for fraudulent transactions.

« W& assessad the suscaptibiiity of the Group and Company's financial statements to malerial misstatament, including
how fraud might oceur. by obtaining and reading group policies and holding enquiries of management and those
charged with governance. Through these precedures we considerad the sk of managemant override in rgiation to
revenue recognition as the key area of focus. We addressad this nsk through sampie testing of revenue recognized in
the year ta underlying confracts and other supporting documentation, ensuting such revenue was recognized in
acenrdance with the salisfaction of pesformance obligations In Hine with the operaling companies’ revenue recagniticn
palicy and UK Gensrally Accepted Accounting Practice.  We have also used data analylics and obtained the entire
population of joumals for the year, and ideniified specilic transactions for further investigalion based on certain
criteria. We understood the lransactions identilied for testing and agreed them to source documeniation.

= Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures lo identify noncompliance with such laws and
reguialmms Qur procedures fnvolved:

Enguiry of management and those charged with governance as 1o any fraud identified or suspected in the
period, any actuat or potertdial litigation or claims or breaches of significant laws or regulations apglicable lo
the Group and the Campany;

Auditing the nsk of management averride of controls, through tesling of a sample of joumal entries and
other adjustments for appropriateness;

Enguiry of management, coupled with testing of joumal eniries, in order to identify and understand any
significan! transactions outside of the normal course of business;

Challenging tha judgamants mada by management through corroborating the basis for those judgments and
considering contradicting evidence; and

Reading financiat siatement disciosures and lesting o supporting documeniation lo sssess compliance with
applicable laws and regulations.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audil of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's websile at hilps://fwww.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our raport

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's rnembers those
matters we are required lo state to them in an audiior's report ard for no other purpase. To the fuilest extent permitted by
law, we do nof accept or assume responsibility 1o anyene other than the company and the company’s members 25 a body,
far our audit work, for this report. or for the apinions we have formed.

%\«é: ‘Q\{c LLP

Rutr Logan {Senior statulory auditor)
for and on behaif of Emnst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Cambridge

o m\.% 5.,\6 2023
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
for the year endad 31 December 2022

Non- Non-
Business underlying' 2022 Business underlying® 2021
Note performance items Total performance items Total
£m Em £m £mn £m £m
Revenue 3 8308 - B830.6 696.2 . £96.2
Cost of sales {739 0) - (739.0) {(602.5) - (6(_)25)
Gross profit 318 - 816 93.7 - ez
Admistrative expanses (83.2) {114 (748)  (818) (283} (106.9)
Operating profiti(ioss) 4 284 (11.4) 17 121 253 (132
Finange income 14 - 1.4 - - -
Finance costs g (14.3) - (143 (12.9) - 2y
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 155 1.4 4.1 {0.8) (253)  (26.1)
Income tax 10 0.3 o3
Profiti(l oss} for the year 44 {26.4)

Profit foe the yeac is equrvalent to total comprahensive peofit foc the year.
Alt profiflosses are altnbutable o equity hoiders of the parent company.
Ajl profiflosses in both pericds were derived from contimuing activities.

The notes un pages 33 to 72 form parl of these financial statements.

1 Non-undeitying 1tems are @xpiained n aote 8
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

Assats

Non-¢current assets
tntzngible assets

Goodwill

Property, plant and equipment
QOther loans and recevables
Deferred lax assets

Total non-current assets

Currant assets
lnventones

Confract assels

Trade receivables

Other regsivabies
Carporation tax repayabie
Cash and cash equivalents
Total current assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Non-current liabitities
Borrowings

Leasa Haulittes
Deferrad tax liabilities

Total non-currant Habilities

Current Habilities

Trade and other payabies
Coniraet liabdities
Corporation lax payable
Borrowings

L ease liabiities

Total currant liabilities
Total liabilitias

Net asseis

Equity

Shars capitat
Preference shares
Accumulated losses

Tedal squity

The notes on pages 33 to 72 form part of these financial statements.

Note

it
13
14
20
23

17

18
149

25

22
15

22
15

24
24

2022 2021
Em Em
53.8 42.8
345.4 318.0
36.6 31.3
0.2 0.2
1.3 12
4471 404.2
3.7 33
B0.5 51.1
1041.0 s
23.7 17.6
- 0.5
18z 10.9
2051 174.7
a52.2 578.9
(173.0) {142.7
{11.1) {8.2)
R ALE) (9.6)
{196.3) {160.5)
{150.8) {117.0§
(11.5) {5.2)
(1.2) .
(41.3) {39.6)
(6.9) 59
(211.7) (167.7)
{404.0} {328.2)
244.2 250.7
216.9 216.9
220.0 220.0
{182.7) {186.2y
244.2 250.7

The financial statements were approved and authornised for issue by the Board and were signed on its behaif by

T. Evans
Director

Date: 18 ‘:)»-.L 1&1’1)
Campany Mumbdr: 11278510
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Company Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2022

MNote 2022 2021
£m £m

Assetls
Non-current assats
Invesiments 15 245.4 2494
Cther Inans and receivabies Pad] 3651 3301
Total non.current assats 594.5 579.5
Current assels
Trade raceivabies 18 J 6:3 . . ,.,J:E. .
Total currant assats o 53 S 1.8W
Total aggats 610.8 581.1
Liabilities
Non-current Habilities
Barrowings o wes o geen
Total non-currant Habilities o (184.4) o fam
Currant lighilities
Trade and other payables Al {8.9% ®.3;
Bank gverdrafis s - 0.4)
Total currant jiabilities (8.9} {8.7}
Total ligbilities o {173.3} (143.?‘;
Net agsets 437.5 437.7
Equity
Share capitai 24 216.9 216.9
Praference shares 24 2200 220.0
Accumudated profits ‘ 0.8 o os
Totad aquity 4375 437.7

The notes on pages 33 to 72 form part of these financial statements.

Mo profit and loss accound is presented by the Company, as permitted under section 408 of the Companias Act 2606, The
profit of the Company for the year ended 31 Decamber 2022 was £9.7m (2021: £11 im).

The financial slalemenis were approved and authorised for issue Dy the Board and signed on s behalf by

-

T. Evans
Director

Date- 1& 3,_5 1,.1,5



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ernded 31 Decamber 2022

Balance at 31 December 202¢
Loss for the year
Total comprehansive loss for the year

Transactions with owners
Issue of share capdal

Dividend paid

Baianes at 31 December 2021

Profit far the year

Totat comprehensive inconw for the year

Transactions with ownerg
Dividend paid

Balance at 31 Decamber 2022

The notes on pages 33 to 72 fncm part of these financial statements.

Shave Prafarance Accumilated Total

Note capital shares losses aquity
£m £m Em £m

216.8 128.0 {148.2) 268.7

- (26 4) (26.4)
. - (26.4) T (z6.4)

; 220 - 220

. (1.6} (11.8)
2183 2200 (188.2) T 2s07

- - 44 4.4

B - 4.‘4W . 44

24 - - (10.9) {10.9)
""""" 216.3 2200 (1927) 2442
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited
Company Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 Dacembar 2022

Balance at 31 December 2029
Profit for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with ownars
tssue of share capital
Rividend paid

Balance at 31 Dacember 2021
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners
Dividend paid

Baiance at 31 Dacamber 2022

Note

24

Share Prefarenca Accumulated Total
capital shares profits aquity
£m £m £m Em
216.9 198.0 1.3 416.2
- - 121 121
N - 124 12.1
- 220 - 220
- - (11.8) {11.8)
216.9 220.0 18 4387
- - 9.7 g7
- - 8.7 2.7
- {10.9} {109
218.9 220.0 0.6 4375

The notes on pages 33 o 72 form part of these financiai statements.



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Cash flows from operating actvities
Cash receipts from customers

Cash paid to suppliers

Cash paid o employeas

Recapl of government grams

Cash generated (rom operations

interest paid
Income tax received/{paid)
Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash Rows from investing activities

Payments for purchase of intangible assets, property, plar and
equipmeni

Proceeds from the sale of praperty, plant and equipment

Nat cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Principat element of lease paymenis
Rapaymenl of borrowings

Payment of dividends

Net cash outflow from financing activities

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalants
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of peried
Cash and cash equivalents at year end

The notes on pages 33 to 72 form part of these financial statements.

32

Naote

15

24

25

2022
£m

§11.6
{299.3)
{462 5)

{15.2)

38.4

(2.3
3.2

‘(B.T)‘ o

{9.5)

(10.9)
{20.4)

53

¢4

16.2

2021
£m

665.8
(222.1
(423.5)

(10.7)

42
(5.9)

(83
{(7.8)
18
@y

{4.3)
154
10.9
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Accounting policies

General information

Atalisn Servest Holdings Limited is a private limiied company limited by shares that s incorporated and domiciled in ihe
Unitad Kingdom. The address of the registered office is Vicon House, 2 Westem Way, Bury St Edmunds, IP33 38P. The
reyistered number of the Company is 11278514,

The fnancial statements are prepared in stering which is the presentational currency of the Growp and rounded 1o the
nearast £0.1 mudlion exCept where otherwise indicated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Atatian Sorvest Holdings Limiled have been prepared in accordance with
international accounting standards in gonformily wilh the requiremens of the Companies Act 2008, and the parent company
financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Adopted Intemational Accounting Standards, inciuding Financial
Rapoting Standarg 107 Raduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101°),

The consolidates and company financist statements have been prepared on the geing concem basis under the historical
cost convention except for Net defined benefit pension scheme assel accounted for al fair value.

The consolidated financial statements include the resuits of all subsidiaries of Atalian Servest Holdings Limiled ag listed in
note 16,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Companies Act 2006 and FRS 101 requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. it also requires management lo exercise ils judgement in the process of applying the Group's
scoounting policies. The estimates and |udgements that have a significant rsk of causing a material adjusiment io the
carrying amounlts of assets and Habilities are set cut in note 2. The Okrectors consider that the accounting poiicias set out
below are the most appropriate.

1AS 1 permits an antily o present additional information for specific items 1o anabie users lo assess the underlying fnancial
performance. In praciice these items are commonly reforred to as ‘specific’ or ‘nen-underlying' items aithough such
erminutogy i not defined in FRS and accordingly there is a levei of judgement required in determining what flems to
saparalely identify. The Board has adopted a policy o separately discloss thuse items that it considers are outside the
underlying operating resuils Tor the particular year under réview arnd against which the Group's performance is assessed.

llems within non-underlying include intangible amortisation. assel impairmenis, conlingent consideration movements,
acouisition expenses and specific non-recurring items in the statement of profit or loss which, in the Direclors’ fudgement,
nead (o be disciosed separately (see note 8) by virtue of their nature, size and incidence in order for users of the financial
statements to vhitam a proper understanding of the linancial information and the urdderlying performance of the business.
This poiley is reviewed by the Board of Directors on an on-going basis.

The Company has taken advaniage of the foilowing disclasure exemptivns under FRS 101

- The requirements of IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures;

- Tha requirements of paragraphs 91 to 88 of IFRS 13 Fair Value Messyrement;

- The raquirements of the second semence of paragraph 116 and paragraphs 113a), 114, 115, 118, 119{a) lo ),
120 to 127 and 129 of FRS 15 Raevenue from Contracts with Customers;

- The requiraments of paragraphs 106d), 16(1. 16, 38A, 388, 38C, 380, 404, 408, 40T, 400, 117 and 134 {0 136 of
LAS 1 Presentation of Finandal Statements;

- Yhe requiremsnts of 1AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows:

- The retjuirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of 1AS 8 Accounting Pulicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Erors,

- The requirements of paragrapghs 17 and 18A of 1AS 24 Related Parly Disclosures; and

- The equirements of paragraphs 130(N6), 130(N(ED. 134(d) to 134(f) and 135({c) to 135(e) of }AS 36 Impairment of
Asseis

Equivailert disclosures are given in the consolidated financial statements of Alalian Serves! Hoidings Limited.



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2022

Accounting policies (continued)

New and amended standards and interpretations

The Group apphed for tha first-time ceriain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods begioning on
or after 1 January 2022 {uniess otherwise stated). The Croup has not early adopled any other standard, Interpretation or
amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.

interest Rate Benchmark Reform ~ Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and

IFRS 16

The amendments provicde temporary rolicfs which addiess the financial reporting cifects when an interbank affared rate
[BOR) is rapiced wilh an altemative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFA). The amendments include the following practicai
expedients:

* A practical expediant (o require contractual changes. or changes o cash flows thal are directly required by the raform, to
be treated as changes lo a floating interest rate, equivalent to 3 movemnent in a market rate of inerest

= Permit changes required by IBOR reform tc be made t¢ hedge designations and hedge documentation without the hedging
ralationship buing discontinued

« Provide lemporary reliaf o entiies from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR instrument is
designated as a hedge of 3 risk component

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Group intends & use the
practical expedients in future periods iT they become applicable.

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 Amendments to IFRS 16

On 28 May 2020, the IASE issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions - amendment to IFRS 16 Leases

The amendments provide ralisf (o lessees from applying IFRS 16 guidance on ease madification accounting for rent
concossions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandermic. As a praclical expedien!, a lessee may elect nol te
assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification, A lessee that makes this election
accounts for sny change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same way it would
avcount for the change under IFRS 16, if the change were not a lease modification.

The amendment was intended 1o apply until 30 June 2021, bul as the impact of the Covid-19 pandesmic is continuing, on 31
March 2021, the 1ASB exiendad the period of application of the practical expedient to 30 June 2022, The amendment applies
to annuat reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Agril 2021, However, the Group has net received Covid-18-refated rent
eoncessions, but plans 1o apply e practical expedient if it becomes applicable within allowed penod of application.

Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract - Amendments to 1AS 37

An onerous contract is a contract under which the ungvoidable of meeting the chiigations under the contract costs {i.e., the
costs that the Group cannot avoid becausa il nas the contracl) exceed the acanomic benefits expected to be received under
it.

The amendmenis specify that when assessing whether a contracl s onerous or loss-ineking, an entity needs lo include
costs that relate directly 0 a contract to provide goods ar services including bolth incremental cosis (e.4.. the costs of direct
labour and materials) and an allocation of costs diredtly related to contract activities {e.g.. depreciation of equipment ysed
i fulfii the contract and costs of contract management and supervision). General and administrative costs do not relate
direclly (o 3 contract and are excluded uniess they are explicitly chargeable o the counterparty under the contract.

The Groug applied the ameandments o the contracts for which it had not fulfilled ali of its obfigations at the beginning of the
reparting pertod.

Pricr i the application of the amendments, the Group had not identified any contracts as being onerous as the unavoidable
costs undar the contracts, which were the cosis of Rulfiling them, comprised only incremental costs directly relaled lo-the
contracts. As a result of the amendments, certain other directly retated costs have been included by the Group in determining
the costs of fuifiliing the contracts.

In accordance with the transilional provisions, the Group apples the armendments 1o contracts for which it has not yet fulfilted
ail of s obligations, ai the beginting of the annua raporing period in which ¥ Nirst applies the amendments (the date of
initial application} and has not restaled its comparative informaltion,

The adoption of IAS 37 amendmenis had no significant impact on the consolidated financial stalements.

RE|



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Accounting policies [continued)

Reference to the Conceptuai Framework - Amaadments fo IFRS 3

The amendments replacs a reference o a previous varsion of the 1ASE's Conceptual Framework with a reference fo the
current version issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its requirements.

The amendments add an axception o the recognition principie of IFRS 3 Business Combinations to avaid the issue of
poterdial ‘day 2° gains or losses arising for liabiities and contingent liabililies that would be within the scope of 1AS 37
Praowisfons, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asgeis or IFRIC 21 Levies, if incurred separately. The exception requires
entihes o apply the cntena in IAS 37 or IFRIC 21, respectively, instead of the Conceptual Framework, to determine whether
a present obligation exisis al the acquisition date.

The amendments alse add a new paragraph 0 IFRS 3 to clarify that contingent assels do not qualify for recognition at the
agguisition date.

In accordance with the bansiional provisions, the Group appfies the amendments prospectivaly, (8., to business
cominnalions occurnng afler the beginning of the apnual reporting penod in which # firsl applies the amendmenis {the daile
af initial application).

These amendments had ne impact on the consalidated financial statements of the Groug as there were no contingent assets,
liabilities or contingent liabilities within the scope of these amendments that arose during the period.

Going concem

The Group made 3 profit ater {ax of £4.4rn for the year and ita net assel position redused ta £244.2m (2024 £250.7m). The
Group coptinued o be liquid and closed with a cash balance of £16.2m [2021 £10.9m), Cumrenl assels cover current
liabitities by 1 0 Gmes (2021 1.0 times),

As gant of the assessment of going concam the Direclors coasidered the impact of COVID-13, the war in Ukraine any the
current inflation leveis on the forecast revenue, ERITDA and cashfiow taking into account the mitigating actions the Directors
have implemented o maximise the Group's svailable liquidity aver the forecast pericd {¢ 31 July 2024, The mitigating actions
included using the sirategic suppller and customer relationships buit during the COVID-19 period and pro-actively
negofiating with both cusiomers and suppliers around cost increases and whal joint actions can tie laker o minimise the
imgact of thesa. The Group has alsa continued the strong framework of rigorous managerment of ils cperating expenses and
strung contract managemenl. Through these measures, the Group anticipates being able to miligate the impact of these
matters on its financial resuits and on its liquidity with no shortfall.

The Group has taken and continues lo take steps o marage ils cash position and mantain its liquidity. The Directors have
considered the availabiiity of support from the treasury function managed by he OCS Group, foflowing the sale of the
business on the 28" of February 2023, and the ability of the Group to continue to provide that support, The Group finances
a porticn of its working capital through a trade receivabies sale programme comprsing factoring agreements which at the
year-end representad a maximum of £41.3m (2024 £38.6m) worth of faclored receivables under a facility with a mil of
£85m (2021 £50m} This will provide the Group with additional source of funds as required. In addition, the Group has
aceess 10 3 £1317m (2021: nil} revoiving credit facility to fund acquisitive growth and working capial requirements.

On 28 Feb 2023 the entire share capital and voling rights of Atalian Servest Holdings Limited {ASH) was acquired by Clayton,
Dubifier & Rice {"CD&R"}. @ giubal private investment firm fom Ataiian Holding Development{ & Strategy (AHOS) and the
minarity shareholders of LFA, The complefion of the transaction was subject io customary condittons, including regulatory
and tompetition authonity approvals in a number of jurisdictons, as a resuft of the intention of CD&R to combine ASH with
OCS Group ancther international faciities mansgement company headquaniered in the United Kingdom and operaling
mainly in the United Kingdom and the Asia Pacific region. The acquisition triggered a change in the funding mechansm for
Ihe UK and trefand group The previous loan faciiity in place wilh La Finangiére Alalisn S.A.S has been settled in fuil and
reptaced with 3 loan of £183.6m which covenant free and nol re-payable priot to August 2024. In addition the preference
shates heid by La Financiare Adalian 5.A.S have been acguired OCS Group invesiments Lid under the existing terms.

The sharebolders have confimed that this loan will not be recalled unlass tha Group has sufficient funds to settie this without
mpacting its going concern status. This change in funding amangement does nol have an impact on the directors
assessment that the Group will he able to conlinue in aperational existence.

As a result of these measures, the Direclors ars satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources and fiquidity avaitable and
therafore have reasnnable expectations that the Group wil be able 1o continue in pperalional existence for the foreseeable
future. Tha Group and Company therefore condinue lo adopt the going concem basis in preparing their financial statements.



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022
Basis of conscilidation

]

i)

i)

(v}

Subssidiaries

Subsidigries are all erdities over which the Group has condrol over the linancisl and operating palicies so as to
obtain benefit from thew activities. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is ransferred
untll the dale that control ceases. The Company is an investee if all three of the Iollowing elements are present:
power aver the investee, exposure lo vaniable retums from the investee and the ability of the invesior o use is
power 1o affent those variable retumns. Conlrgl is reassessed whenaver facts and circumnstances indicale that there
may be a change in any of these elaments of control, Non-controlling interesis are recognised on subsidiares
wherg the Group does nof have 0% ownearsiip.

Goodwilf

Goodwil s Stawrd at cost less accumulated impainment losses. Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the
excess of the cost of acquisiion over the Group's interestin the fair value of the ideniifiable assets and fiabifities of
a subsidiary, associate or joint veniure at the date of acquisition. Goodwil is recogmised as an asset and reviewed
Tor impairment at teast annually, Any impairment is recognised immadiately n the consolidated statement of profil
of loss and 18 net subsequently raversed,

Goodwill 1 allucated to cash-generaling units for the purpose of Impairment {esting, The allocation is made to thase
cash-generating umts or groups of cash-generating units that are expecied to benefit from the business combination
in which the goodwill arose. Contingent consideration is included in cost al its acquisition date fair value and, in the
case of contingent consideration classified as a financiat tiability, remeasured subsequently through profit or loss.
All direc! costs of acguisition are recogrised immedialely as an expense in the staterment of profit or loss.

On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or joint venture, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determinaiion of the prefil or Joss on disposal.

Busiress combinaiions

Business combinafions are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration for acquisilion is
maasured al the fair values of assets given, labilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the
Company in arder to obtain conlrol of the acquiree {at the date of exchange). Cosis incurred in connection with the
acquisiion are recognised in the Consulidated Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.

Whers a business combination s achieved in stages, previously held inlerest in the acquitee are remeasured o
fair value af the acquisiton date {date the Group obiaing control) and the resulting gain or loss s recognised in the
Conzolidaled Statament of Profit or Loss.

Adjustments are made to fair vaiues to bring the accounting policies of acquired businesses into alignment with
those of the Grmup. The cosls of inlegrating and reorganising acquired businesses are charged to the post
auquigition profit or loss.

It the infliat accounting is incomplete at the reparding date, provisional amounts are recorded. These amounts are
subseguently adjusted during the measurament perod, or additional assels or liabililies are recognised when new
information about ts existence is obiained during the period.

Acquisitions ur disposals of nor-controlling interests which do not affect the parent company’s control of the
subsidiary ars accounted for as fransactions with equity heiders. Any difference between the amount paid or
recaived and tha changa in non-contralling inferests is recognised directly in equity. Adjustments can anly e made
up to 12 months after the acquisition date.

Trarsactions gliminated on consofidation

intragroup balances and any gains and losses ar income and expenses anising from intragroup transactions, are
elminaled in preparing the conaolidated financial information. Lossas are eliminated in the same way as gains bul
only o the exient that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Accounting policles (continued)
Property, piant and equipment

ARl propurty, pant and equipment assets are staled at cust less acoumulated depreciatian,

Depreciation of property, piant and equipment i provided (o writa off the cast, fess residual value, on & straight-ling basis
over the estimated uselul life.

= Freshold land and buildings 50 vears {except land}

+«  Shuor-lerm leasehokl property COver the period of the lease
~  Flant and machinery 2-5 years

«  Motor vehuwles 4-5 years

«  Computer squprnent 2-5 yeos

*  Fixtures and fitings 2-10 years

Rewdual values, ramaining useful lives and depreciation methaods are reviewed annuaily and adjusted f appropriate.

Gams or logsas on disposal are includad within the Consolidated Statement of Profit or L oss.
Leases

The Group assesses at contract incaegtion whether 3 contract is, Or conlaing, a lease. That is, if e contract conveys the
right to control the use of an wenlified asset for a pedied of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a iessee

The Group applies a singie recognilian and measuremeni approach for all leases. The Group recogrises lease llabilities to
make lease payments and righi-of-use assets representing the nght 1o use the underlying assets.

i} Right-of-use assels

The Group recogrises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of lhe lease (i.e., the date he underlying assel is
available fur use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impaimennt lossas, and
adjusted for any remeasuroment of lease liabilities. The cost of right-ufuse assets inciudes the amount of lease kabilities
recognised, initial direct cosis meurred, and lease paymenis made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assels are depraclated on @ straight-ine basis over the shorter of the lease lerm and the
estimated usefd lives of the sssets, as follows:

«  Plant and machinery - 3 to 5 years

»  Molor vehicies and other eguipment -~ 3 1o 5 years

+  Property - 3lc 10 years

It ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at Ihe end of the teasa lerm or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation s calculated using the estimated yseful life of the assel, The rghl-of-use assets are aiso
subject to impairment. Refar o the accounting policies impairment of assers.

&} Laase iabilitics

At the vommencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease habilities measurad st the present value of lease
paymenis lo be made over the lease term. The lease payments Include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
paymenis) less any leass inceniives receivable, variable lease paymenis that depend on an index or a rate, and amounis
expeciad to be Daid under residual vaiue guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercisa price of a purchase
oplicn reasonably certam to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease lem
reflects the Group exercising the option ta terminate

Variabie lease payments thal do not depend on an ndex or 3 rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred 10
produce inventonas) sy tha year in which e event or condilion that inggers ihe payment occurs.

in calculating the present vaoiue of lease payments. the Group uses s incremendal borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because he interest rate implicit in the lease is nol readily determinable. ARar the commencement
dale, the amourt uf lease liabilibes is increased 1o reflect the accrelion of interest and reduced for the Jeass payments made.
in additicn, the carrying amount of lease liabdities 3 remeasured if there is 3 modification, a change in the lgase term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes 1o juture paymenis resuiting from a change in an index or rate used o
determine such lease paymenlts) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the undertying asset. The Group's
lease liabdiies are inciuded in Interest-bearing loans and berowings (see note 22).



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decembar 2022

Accounting policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash squivaients comprise shori-tenm, highly liquid investments Ihat are readily convertibis into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an msignficant nsk of changes in vatue. An investment with a maturity of three months or less from the
date of acquisition is normally classified as being shorl-lerm.

In the statemvent of cash Rows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafis and invoica discounting facilities.
Bank overdrafls are shown within borrawings in current llabilities on the statement of financial position.

inventories

Inventories arg valued al the fower of cost and net realisabie value after making due allowance for obsolete and siow-moving
stocks. Cost is datermined using the firsl in, first out matbed.

Intangible assets
Intangible assels other than gnodwill (please see within Basis of Consofidation) are shawn at cost less accumultated
amartisation and impairment losses.

intangible assels are moognised on business combinations if they are separabile from the acquired entity or givecrise o other
contractuaiffegal rights. The amounts ascribed to such intangibles are artived at by using appropriate valuation techniques
{see section related o cntical estimates and judgements belaw).

Amortisation is charged lo the statement of profit or logs on a straight-ne basis over the estimated usehul lives of the
intangihle assel. The amortiaation expense is inchuded within the administrative expenses line in the consuiidated staterent
of profit ar loss.

Intangible assets are amortised from the date they-ane dvailable for use, The useful ives are as follows:

o Software 10 yearg
«  Customer basc and reputation 10 years
+ Regional icences 20 yaars,

Amgortisation periods and methads are reviewed:-annually andg adjusted f appropriate.
impairment of assets

The Group assasses annually whether there is any indication that any of its assets have been impaired. if such indication
exisis, the asset's recoverable amount is esimaled and compared to it's carrying value. An assel’s recoverabie amount is
the higher of an assel’'s or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs of disposal and its volue in use.

When the camrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds s recoverable amount, the asset or cash-generaling
unit is considered impaired and is writters down lo s recoverable amount. in assessing vaiue in use, the estimated fulure
cash fows are discounted lo thaeir present value using a post-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessments
of the time value of maney and the dsks specific to the asset The future cashflows are based on most recent budgets and
forecast cafculations which ganerally caver a period of two-three years. A long-term growth rate is calcudated and applied fo
futurs cashflows after the third year,

Impairment fosses relating 1o continuing opsration are recognisad in those expense categories congistent with the function
of the impaired assat uniess the asset is carred at the revatzed amount {in which case the impairment fogs is treatled as a
revaluation decraase). An imparment Joss Is recognised for the amount by which lhe assel's carrying amaount exceeds iis
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are moognised in the consalidated statement of profit or loss.

For goodwill, the recoverable amount is assessed annuaily and whenever thera s an indication of impairment. An assel's
recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less costs 1o sell and #s value in use and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the assel does nol generale cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assats and the assat’s value in use cannot be estimated o be close to ils fair value. In such cases the asset is lested for
mmpairment as part of the cash generating unit to which it belongs. Fer the purposa of impairment lesting goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash generating units expected o benefit from the synergias of the combination. Cash generaling
uniis le which goodwill has been atlocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequenlly when thera is an indicalion
that e unil may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than the camying amount of the
unit, the imparment ioss 15 allocated first to reduce the carrying amaunt of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assels of the unil pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asssl in the unil,
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Accounting policies (continued)
Investmants

nvestments in subsidiaries are recorded at cost less accumulated impairment Iosses, which is the fair value of the
consideration paid. invastrmerts in join ventures are initially measured at cost and adjusted thereafier for the pest-acquisilion
change in the Group's share of net assels.

invesiments in subsidianes are assesges annwally for impairment, or when any indicators of impairment are idenlified. The
same process is followed as descrbed in Imparment of assets above.

Joint ventures

A joint veniure 15 8 joint arangement whereby the parties that have jeint control have the rights to the net assels of the
arrangement. The resuils and assets and labidities of joint ventures are incarporaled in the Group's consolidated financial
statemants using the equity method of accounting, Under the equity method, investments in joint ventures are caried in the
consolidated staternent of financial position at cost as adjusted for the Group's share of the net assets in the joint venture,
fess any mpairmant in the value of the iovestment. The Group's share of post-lax profils or losses in recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss accounl.

Assaociates

Where the Group has the power to paricipate. In {u! not control} the financial and operating policy decisions of anather
entily, [t is classified as an associate. Associales are initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost. Subsequently associates are accounted for using the equity method, where the Group’s share of post-acquisibion
profils and losses and olher comprehansive income is recogmised in the cunsolidatads statemant of profit and less and other
comprehensive income (except for losses in extess of the Group’s investment in the associate uniess there is an obiigation
o make good those fosses).

Profis and lusses arsing on transaclions bebween the Group and its associatas are recognised only o the extent of
unrslated mvestors” inlerests in the associale. The investor's share in the associale’s profits and losses resulting from these
transactions is ehminated against the carrying value of the associate. Any premium paid for an associate above the fair
value of the Group's share of the identifiabie assets, Rabililies and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Whers there is objeclive evidence that the investment in an associale has been
impaired the carrying amount of the investiment is lesied for impaiment in the same way as other non-financial assats.

Financial instruments

{FRS 9 uses an expected credit foas moded for recognising impairment of financiat assels held at amortised cost This
requires the group lo sonsider forward-looking information to calculate expected credit lpsses regardiess of whether there
hag been an impairment trigger.

Undir IFRS ¢ anly assets which consist soteiy payments of principat and imterest (SPPI) can be recorded at amonised cost.
All financial assets held by the Group are SPP( and can therefore be subsequently maasured al amortised cost.
Derivative financial instruments

Dervative financial instrumerts are inttially measured at fair value on the date on which a derivative contragt is enlered inlo
and are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or joss. Denvatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair valug is negalive. Thers are no derivative financial instruments for 2022 (2021: none)

Trade and ather payables

Trade payables are stated at their original invoiced vaiue, as the interest thal would be recognised from discounting future
cash payments over the shart payment penod is nat considered ta be materal.

interest-bedring borrowings

irteresi-bearing horrowings are siated at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The effactive interest methad
is a method of calculating the amoetised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant perad.
Thne efiactive interes! rate is the rate that exactly discounts eslimated future cash payments through the expeciad ife of he
financial liability.
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Accounting policies (confinued)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are intially measured at their Iransaction price if they do not contain a significant financing componant,
which is the case for substantially alt trade receivables. The loss allowance is measured st an amount equal fo lifetime
expected credil Ipases, Those ara the expected credil losses ihat result from all poasibile default events over the expacted
life of those lrade receivables, using a provision matrix that kakes into account histerieal information on defaults adjusted for
the torward-inoking information per customer. When a frade receivable is considered urcollectable, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subssquent recoveries of amounis previcusly wrilten off are eredited against the allowance account,
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance accaunt are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The carrying amnunt of irade receivables includes racelvabins which are subject W o factoring arrangement. Under this
arrangement, the Graup has transferrad the relevant recelvables to the faclor in exchange for cash and is preverted from
selling or pledying the recevahies, However, the Group has refained credil risk and therelore conlinues to recognise the
transferred assets in their entirety in the statement of financial position. The amount repayable undar the agreement is
presented in Current borrowings.

Due [0 the shorterm sature of the current recaivablas, their camying amount Is considered o be the same as their Tair
vahas,

Ratirement benefits

The Gruup operates both defined contribution plans and defined benefit plans. A defined conlribution plan is ore where the
Group pays fixed contribulions into a separale entity. These contributions are expensed in the period in which they accrue,

The terms of the defined benefit pansion plan define the amount that employees will receive on retirment. These amounts
are dependemt on faclors such as age, years of sewvice and compensation, and are determined independentiy of lhe
contributions payable or the investrments of the scheme. The defined benefit assat or liability recognised in the statement of
financial position is the difference batween the present vaiue of the defined benefil obligations and the fair value of the plan
assets.

The defined benefit obiigation is calculated by indepandent aciuaries using the project unit cost method. Actuariat gains and
losses arg recognised in full in the year in whith they ocour within the siatement of comprehensive income.

As a result of #s outsourcing contracis with education authorities, the Group obtains Admitled Body siatus in a aumber of
Local Authority final salary pension schemes in respect of 3 number of designated employees for the duration of the
outsourcing contract. The Group pays employer contributions as determined each year by the reievant scheme based on
tha scheme acluary's recommendalion in order to maintain an ongoing fufly funded status, bul under the terms of the
Admission Agrearments with certain authorities the Group is protected (by bond, guarantees or indemnily) from the risk of
previous underfunding or additional labilites arising on eady retirement or redundancy. The assets of tha scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in independent Trust Funds administered by the relevant Local Authorities. Although
notional allocalions of assets are made In some sthemes. the Sroup does not have specific information about its share of
the underlying assels and Gabifities of the schemes or the extent of any deficits in thase schemes. Given the nature of the
Group's memtarship in these mulii-employer final salery schames, conlributions are accounted for as if they wers defined
contribution schemes, the profit and loss charge being based on contributions payables ir respect of the aecounting perdod.

Ravenue

The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control over a product or service to Is customer. Revenue is measured
based on the consideration specified in 3 contract with a customer, net of vaiue added tax and trade discounts. Where the
cunsideralion i variabie, the amount recognised is highly probable not to suffer significant reversatl in future.

The Group's activities are wide-ranging, and as such, depending on the nature of the product or service delivered and the
timing of when conirof is passed lo the customer, the Croup wll account for revenue over time and at a point in time.
Adgitionai detuils of revenue recognition on a divisional basis (s as follows:

(i Cleaning

Cordracts for Cleaning services refate 1o a variety of commercial cleaning aclivities across a variety of industries
including retail and transport and typically require the provision of a group of interrelated goods and services o the
customer over a period of time. Such goods and services are lypically considered o represent a single performance
chiigation as each promise is satisfled over the same period. For the majority of the Group's contracts, invoices are
raised in the month ar months after the delivery of the servicas. Where Cleaning sarvices are provided oulside of
contractual arrangements and are one-off in nature, revenue is recognised at the point in lime those servicas are
defivered,

40



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Accounting policies (continued)

Revenue (continued)

{4

{Hi}

()

v}

v

{vit)

Catenng

Contractg for Catenng services refale o the provisien of catenng and hospitality services in a variety of sectors
including care and education. Contracts can require the provision of goods o the cuslomer, considered o be a single
perdormance obligation. Revenue is recognised at the pont at which food and dnnks are provided based on Hil
receipls leken in our sites. Promotional discounts are recorded al point of sale. Revenue is reported net of VAT and
diszaunts apotied. The perfonmance cbiigation is safisfied upon the defivery of the food and drink and payment of the
ransachon pree is due immediately when the customear purchases the food andfor drink,

Allernatively. contracls for Catering services can requive the provision of a group of interrelated goods and services
to the customer over g perod of ime, Such goods and services are typically considered 1o reprasent a single
pedbmance obligation as each promise is salisfied over Ihe same pesicd. For the majorty of these conimcls,
invoices are raised in the month or months after the delivery of the services,

Sevurity

Contracts for Security services relatea to guarding services and the installation of supporting goods such as access
control systems, CCTV and biometric equipment. in contracts that include the cutright sale of equipment, revenue in
respact of the sale and instalistion is recognised at @ point in time when the goods have been installed. Guarding
services represenis 8 senaes of services with a constant pattem of transfar lo the customer over Ume. Ravenue in
respect of such services i recognised over the period of the contract. For the majordty of the Group's contracts,
invaices are raisad in the month or months after the delivery of the servites.

Inearated Solutions

Contracts for integrated Solutions relate o the operation and maintenance of print machinery within the media sector
and management of production fines within the dufomative sector and all services typically require the grovisicn of a
group of interretaied goods and sarvicas to the custamaer over a perod of ime. Such goods and services are typicaily
considered o reprasent a single performance nbligation as each promuse is satisfled over the same period. For the
majority of the Group's contracts, invoices are raised in the monih or monlhs after the delivery of the services.

Technical Seraces

Contraets tor Technical Sarvices typicaily require the provigion of a group of interretated goods and services to the
customier aver a pericd of time, Suech goods and services are typically considered to represent a single performance
abiligation as each promise is satisfied over the same period. For the majority of the Group's contragts, invoices ara
rised in the month or months afler the delivery of the services. Costs are recognised as incurred and revenue is
recognisad on the basis of the propartion of tolai costs at the reporting date to the estimated totai costs of the contract.

Projects
Contracts for Projects typically refate lo consiruction and builing works, Costs are meognised as incwrred and

revenue 1S recognised on the basis of the proportion of {613l costs at the reporting date 10 the estimated total costs of
the contract. Please see naote 2 for further detaiis on judgements relating to estimated total costs.

Comract asseis and faditities

A contract asset is recognised when revenug recogniser on an individuai contract exceeds the amounts billed on
tnat contract to date. Contracl assets are reduced by appropriate ose allowances. Where cash received from a
custamer for ant individud! conlract exceeds the revenue recognised, the amount is ingluded in conlrac! liabilities.

Non-underiying items

The following are disclosed separatefy as non-underdying itemas in order 1o provide a ciear indication of the Group's underlying
performance, these have peen disclosed as non-undertying due to their nature:

Radundancy and other costs

Govamment grants and other govemment support
Impairment of Goaowill

Amortisation of acquired intangibles

Please see nule 8 for Rirther explanatian of these categorias.
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Accounting policies (continued)

Income {ax and deferred taxation

Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences bebween the tax bases of assets and Eabiliies and their carrying
amounts far inanciai repurting purposes, except when:
«  the deferred {px llabilly adses from the imlial recognition of goodwill or of an assel or lishiifty in a transaction that
5 nol 3 business combination and thal, al the time of the transaction, does not affect either accounting profit or
laxable income; or
< the laxabie temporary difference is associated with investments In subsidiaries, associates or interest in Joint
ventures and the liming of the reversal of ihe teenporary differencs can be conlrolled and it is probabis that the
temparary differeqt will not reverse in the foresecable future,

The carmyng amcunt of deferred lox assels are reviewed at each statement of financial postion date and are reduced to the
extant that i is no lenger probable that sufficiest taxable income will be avalable to ulilise the deferred tax asset.
Unrecognised deferrad tax assels are reassessed at aach siatemant of financial position date and are recognised to the
exlent that it nas become probable that future taxable income will allow the deferred lax asset (0 be moovered.

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are measured at the lax rates that are expecied o apply in the year when the asset is
reglised, or the habifly is seffled, using tax rates that have been enacied or subslantively enacled at the reporting date.
Income taxes refating to items recognised direclly in gquily are recognised in equity and not in the Consalidated Statement
of Profit or Loss. Deferred tax assets. and llabiliies are ofise! only if a legally enforceabie right exists lo se! off current tax
assels agains! current tax liabilities and the geferred tax assels and Habilities relate 1o the same taxable entity and axation
authority.

impairment of financial assets

The Group has three lypes of financial assets thal are subjact to the expected credit loss model:
- leade moeivabies for sates of inveniory and from the prowsion of services:
+ Contract assels relaling to revenue biked in advance;
- Other receivables relating to loans © associates camied at amortised cost,

Trade raceivables and contract assels

The Group apglies the IFRS 9 simplifled approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all rade receivables and contract assats. To measure the expected credit losses, rade receivabies and
contract assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The contract assels
relate to unbilled work in progress and have substandially the same risk characteristics as the Irade receivables for the same
typas of contract.

An impairment loss for other receivabies measured at amoriised costs is recognised for expected losses when there is an
incregased probability that the courterparty will be urable to setife the contraciual cash flows on the contractual due dates,
a reduction m the amounts expecled to be recovered or both. Where there has been a significant ncrease in exposure o
cradit risk sinca initial rseugnition, a 12-month expected cradit loss allowance is estimaled, reprasenting the partion of the
assel's lifetime expected credif lnsses that Is attributable to 4 default event that is possible within the next 12 months. The
divicend disprobability of defauli and expected amounts recoverabie are assessed using reasonable and supponable past
and forward-looking information that is available with undue cosl or effort. The expecled credit loss is a probability weighted
amouni determined from a range of oulcomes and takes into account the time value of money,

Government assistance

Government grants ahe recognised whero thers is reasonuble assuranca that the grant will be received, and all attached
canditions will be compiled with, Amounts are racognized net within the statement of comprehernsive income 3s an income
or reduction to expensas. Grant accounting has anly been appiied to Cornavirus Jub Retention Scherme (JRS) as part of
UK Covermnment's response lo COVID-19 pandemic, which ended in September 2021,

Dividend distribution

Final divdends to the Company's shareholders are recognised as a liability in the Group's financial staternants in the year
i which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholdars, interim dividends are recognissd on declaration,
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Critical accounting judgements and estimates

The Group makes ealimates and judgements conceming the fulure. The gstimates and judgements that have a significani
risk of causing @ materal adjustment to the carrving amounts of assets and fiabilities are discussed befow:

Estimates
Defined henefit obligation

Refer 10 note 27 for disclosure of the key sources of estimation uncertainty retating to he retirement benefit obligation.
Management consider the key estimaies o be lengevity, discount rate and future salary increases as these could cause a
materal impact to the defined benefit obligation.

Revenue recognition

The Group's revenue recognition policies are central fo how the Group values the waerk it has carried oul in each linancal
pedud. These puolicies require forscasts to be made of the ocutcomes of long-lerm construction services which require
estimales to be made of both cost and income recognition on each contract. On the cost side, estimates of forecasts are
made on the final cutdum of aach contract iy addilion o potantial cosls lo be incurred for any maintenance and defects
liapiiiies. One the income side, estimates are made on variations to consideration which typicaily include variations due lo
changes in scope of work, recoveries of claim income from customers, and potential kquidsied damages thal may be levied
by the customer Estimates are reviewed regulary throughout the contract life based on latest availabie information and
adiusirents made whare nacessary.

Given the pervasive nature of estimates on revenue, cost of sates and related balance shoet amounts, it is difficult to quannfy
the impact of laking akernative assessments on each of the estimates above. Please see note 3.

Leases - estimating lhe merements! borrowing rate

The Group camnol readily determine the interest rate impiicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its iIncremental burrowing rate
{IBR} 1o measure lease habilities The IBR is the rate of intarest that the Group wouki have to pay to borraw cver a similar
term, and with 2 similar security, the funds necessary {0 obtain an asset of a similar vailue lo the right-ofuse assel in a
samifar aconomic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay’, which raquiras eslimation
when no observabie rates are available (such as for subsidlanes that do not enter into financing transactions) or when they
need 0 be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditians of the lease (for exampie. whern lfeases are not in the subsidiary's
functionai curency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inpuls {such as market interest rates) when available
and s required to make certain entity-spacific estimates (such as the subsidiary's stand-alone credit rating). Please see nole
13,

impairment testing

The Group alsv tesis for impairment of goodwill when a tnigger avent occurs or annually a8 appropriate. The impairment
review is perfarmed by projecling the future cash flows, exciuding inance and tax, based upon budgets and plans and
making appropriate judgements about rales of growth and discounting these using a rate that takes into account the time
value of money and the risk inherent in the business. If the present value of the proiecied cash flows is tess than the carrying
valuze of the undedying net assets and rejated grodwill, an impairment charge would Be taken 1o the statement of profit or
loss unless the far value less cost of disposal of the related asset is higher than the carrying value, Pleasa see note 13,

Judgements
Revanue recognition

The Group's revanue recognition poficies require judgement lo be made with regards {o identfication of performance
obhgations within long term confracts. A significant number of these contracts relate 1o construetion or building works, and
management have made a judgemert that the input method is the most appropnale basis for revenoue recognition for these
contracts based on cosis incurred. These contracls also often include an element of vanabte consideration and management
are required lo make judgements of the point in time when the variable consideration is highty probable not to sufier
significant reversat in Ruture. Please see note 3

Recogndion of deferred {ax assots

Deferred taxes are recognised in respect of temporary differences between the tax ireatment and breatment within the
financial statements for assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets are only recognised o the extent they are expected to be
recovered. Recoverability is assessed on an ongoing basis. Deferred tax is caiculated at the subslanlively enacied rale
which s expected to apply in the year the asset or liability is sxpected lo be realised. The recognition of deferred tax assets
is based upon whether it is probabie thal sulficient laxable profits will be avaiiabie in the future against which the raversai of
temporary diferences can be used. Where the ternporary differences relate to losses, the availabifity of the losses 1o offsat
againsi forecas! laxable profits is also considered. Please see nole 23.



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

For tha year ended 31 Decamber 2022

Critical accounting judgements and estimates {continued)

Judgements {continued)
Impairment testing

The Group also tests for impairment of goodwill when a trigger event otcurs or annually as appropriate. The impairment
review is performed by grojecting the ldure cash Nows, exciuding finance and tax, based upon budgets and plans and
making approvriale judgements about rates of growth and discounting these using a raie tha!l takes into account the time
value of money and the risk inherent In the business. If the gresent value of the projecled gash flows is iess than the carrying
value of the underlving net assetls and related goodwill, an impairment charge would be taken o the statement of profit or
foss uniess the far value less cost of disposal of the related asset is higher than the carrying valve Please see note 13,

Non-underiying items

‘Mon-underying items’ are dems of financial performance which the Group believes stioult be separatefy idenkfied on the
face of the statement of prafit or loss 1o assist in understanding the undertying financial performance achieved by the Group,
Determining whather an item is parl of other tems or not requires judgement based on naturg of the item. An analysis of the
amounts included in other items is detaitad in note 8,

Revenue
3{a} Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over Uime and at 2 pont in time in the following maior
sarvice fines amd geograophical regions.

Technical integrated

31 December 2022 Cleaning Catering Security Projects Services Sciutions Total
Em £m £m £m £m £m £m
Primary gaographicsd markel

Uniled Kingdom 3428 0.5 84 8 840 141.6 T34 an2.1
Repiblic of lreland 23 1.1 - - - - 34
Europe - - - - - 24.1 241
TR 71.6 848 840 1416 975 830.6

Timing of révenue recoygnition
At & point in ime 28.4 48.4 6.4 1.8 54.1 7.0 146.1
Ovey time 3227 23.2 78.4 pz2 g7.5 80.5 884.5
351.1 718 34.8 84.0 1416 975 8306

Technical Integrated

3t Dacemibar 2021 Cleaning Catering  Security Prajects  Servicas  Solufions Totat
£m £m £m £Em £m £m £m
Frimary geographical market
United Kingdom 2.2 57.4 102.0 101.5 g5 34.5 8681
Repubiic of refand 1.9 07 - - - - 26
Furgpe - - - - - 24.5 245
2841  58.1 1020 161.5 815 530 6962
Tiwming of revenue recagnition
At a point s o 276 334 3549 4.5 527 14 151.5
Clver ime 256.5 24.7 G68.1 101.0 38.8 57.6 5447
244 584 1029 1015 91.5 580  686.2

A4
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Revenue {continued)}

3(b) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

The Group has recogniserd the fellowing assets and liabilities refated to contracts with customers

Cleaning

Secyurily

Catering

Projects

Technical Services
integrated Solutinng
Cther

2022 iove)
Contract Contract
assets Liabilities
£m £m
13.8 (3.8
z8 -
240 {0.2)
24.4 (1.6}
13.9 (3.0}
3.6 {(2.9)
80.5 {11.5)

2021 2021
Contract Contract
aszetls Liabilities
£m £m
9.8 {1.9)

5.0 -
11 0.3
231 (12
10.7 (1.8;

13 -

0.1 .
T st 5.2)

The contract assets prvanly ralated to the Group's right to consideration for wark completed bul not billed at the reporiing
dats on Cleaning, Security. Projects and Technical Services contracts The coniract assels are wansfemed o receivabies

when the rights become uncondibonal.

The cundract hiabilities primarity relale lo the advance consideration received from customers for Projects and Technical
Services contract, for which revenue is recognised on compietion of the relevant contract, immaterial impaiment has been

noted on the contract assets.

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current year refates to camied forward contract

liabilities,

Cleaning

Calenng

Projects

Techmcal Services
Integrated Solutions
Security

Other

2022

£m
1.9

€3
1.2
1.8

52

201

£m
G.8

0.2
44
0.8
a.1
at
01
8.5

The following table includes revenue expected to be recognised in the Riture related to performance obligations that are

unsatisfied (or paniiaity unsalisfied) at 31 December 2022.

Projecis
Technical Services

2023 2024
£m £m
279
14.8 -

2025 Total
£m £m
- 279
08

44
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MNotes to the Financial Statements
For the year endad 31 December 2022

Operating profit/(loss)

2022 2024
Group operalng profittlosa) for the year is stated after the fnllowing: £m £m
Staff costs (note 6) 5121 4421
Amuodisation of intangible assets {note 11} 94 76
Degreciation of tangible fixed assets:
- owned by the group {note 14} 10.5 749
- held under leasas (note 15} 8.8 7.3
Profit an disposals of property, plant ang equipment {1.7) {0.3}
Subcordractor costs 118.5 86.2
Consumables used (note 17) g8.8 79.8
Auditor's remuneration
2022 2021
£m £m
Fees payahie o the Group's awdtor for the audil of Ihe Group's financial
0.7 0.8
stalements i
o7 6.8
Staff costs
2022 2021
Group Em £m
Wages and salanes 462.5 4235
Government grants {noie 8) - {15.6}
Bovinl secunty cosls 41.3 28.2
Cther pension costs - dofined contribution schemes (nole 27} 8.1 5.8
Other paasion costs - defined benelit schemas (note 27) 6.2 21
5129 442 1
The average monthiy number of employess, inclugding the Directors, during the yegr was as foflows:
Group 2022 2021
Operational staff 26,320 26,438
Administrabion and management 2,143 1,817
Direciors .3 S
28,168 28,357
2022 2021
Campany Em £m
Wages and salaries 4.0 4.1
Sacial security costs 0.6 0.6
Pension cosis - defined contribution schemes 2.1 0.1
4.7 4.8
The average monthly number of employees, including the Directars, during the year was as ollows:
Company 2022 2021
Adrinistration and management & &
Direciors 3 1
8 7

4t



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

For tha year ended 31 Decamber 2022

Staff costs (continued)

The JRS was a scheme announced by the UX government or 20 March 2020 lo suppori employers wha canngl maintain
their custent workforce because their operatians have been affecled by coronavirys COVIO-19. Under the scheme,

ampinyers may place warkers on their payroll on furiough and receive 3 grant of 80% base salary (up to £2,500 per month).
JRS was subsequently extended until 30 September 2021,

in 2021 the Group recorded £16.6m in the profit and loss and £18 4m of cash received. In 2022 the Group recarded £nil in
the profit and foss angd Enil of cash received.

Directors’ remuneration

2022 2021

Group £y £y
Remuneraticn 1 'G_W“W e j,‘gw

16 19

Highest paid Director

The hughest gad Director recawved remuneration of £841.282 (2021 £1.768 424), The value of tha Group's pension
contributons paid to a defined contribulion pension schems in respect of the highest paid Director amounted lo £4,000
{2021, £3,333;,

Non-undertying items

22 2021
Group Em £m
Redundancy and ather costs 1.1 3.6
Acquisition cosis (note 12} a.g -
imparment of gooadwill - 30.7
Armortisalion of atquired intangibles 9.4 76
Government grants (note 63 - {16.6)
Administrative (incoma)expanses 11.4 25m3 .

Redundancy and other costs: redundancy payments made to employees refate to one-off costs of arganisalion change
assgcialed with the Group's efficiency and change policies and do not relate 1o the underying business performance.

Acguisition cosis: one-cif cosls assucimied with the acuisition of Incentive FM Group Limiled (note 12). These costs do
not relate o the underlying business performance.

Amortisation of acquired intangibles: the Group carries in its statement of inancial position significant balances retated
10 acquired intangible assets. The amonisation of these assels s reporied separately as they distost the in-year rading
resuits and performance of the acquired tusis S IS 2SS d through the underlying operalional resuits

Government grants and other government support: Government grants are recegnised where there is reasonable
assurance thal the grant will be received, and all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grent refates to an
expense ilem. il is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the pericds that the relaled costs, for which it is intended
to campensate, are expensed. When the grant relates lo an asset, ! is recognised as incame in equal amounts cver the
expacted useful lite of ihe refated asset.

When the Group recerves grants of non-monedary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded al nominal amounts and

releasead o prafit or loss over the expected useful life of the assed, based an the pattern of consumptlion of the benefits of
the undertying asset by equal annual ingtaiments.

47
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 3022

Finance costs

Group

Interest on bank oans andg gverdraits
Loan note interast

Other interast

Interest on lesse liabilities (nole 15)
Amortised borrowing cosls

Income tax

Group

Currant tax

Current tax or lossas for the yesr
Adjustments in respact of priar years

Total current tax

Defarred tax

Criginaton and reversal of lemparary differences
Deferred lax effect of change in taxation ratos
Adjustments for previcus periods

Totat deferred tax {inote 33}

Total taxation (creditycharge

2022
Em
1.3

g8
22
5.9
0.1
143

2022
£m

1.0

2021

0.8
14.3
0.7
11

12.8

2021
Em

0.8
I
0.4

.1

o1

0.3

The lax assessed for the year differs from the standard rate of corporation tax i the UK of 18%. The differences are

explained below:

Prafi{Loss) bafure (axation

Loss before taxation multipiad by the rate of corporabion tax of 19% (2021

199%)
Effects ok

Expenses nol deductible for tax purposes
Defsred tax effect of thange in texation raters
Non-fasable income

Corporate interest restriction

Adiustmenis for previcus periods

Group refief

Fized assel timing

Gther differences

Total taxation (credit¥charge

2022 2021
Em £m
4.1 {28.1)
08 (5.0}
0.4 &5
0.3 {©.31

(0.9} (0.1}
1.0 {13}
(1.6 (0.4)
{2.5) 0.2
2.2 0.4
{0.3) 6.3

The UK Budgst 2022 announcements on 23 Seplember 2022 included measures to support economic recovery s a result
of the anguing COVID-19 pandernic. These includad the UK's main corporation tax rate remaining at 19%. Deferrad laxes

nn the balanca shael have been measured at 28% (20271 ~ 28%).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022

11. Intangible assets

Customer
base and Regional

Software reputation licenses
Group £m £m £m
Cost
At 31 Decamber 2020 i3 5.1 0.2
Additions 1.4 . -
Transfor Q. 5 - ] MQ.S 77777
At 31 Decembar 2021 52 85.1 2.5
Additions 0.8 - -
Additions on acquisilions 0.6 19.0 N -
At 31 December 2022 _ 66 841 s
Actumulated arrortisation
At 31 December 2020 0.4 19.5 «
Charge for the year 0.3 7.3 -
Transfer 9.4 . 4.3 )
At 31 Decamber 2021 11 268 o3
Charge for the year 1o 8.3 a1
At 31 Dacember 2022 ' 21 351 T 04
Net ook amount
Al 31 December 2021 41 383 a.2
At 31 December 2022 . 45 49.0 0.1

Total

68.8
1.4
a8
708
0.8
195
92

199
78
67

282
G4

37@

42;6
538

The average remaining amardisation pericds at 31 December 2022 is:

Software 10 years (2021; 30 years)
Customer base and reputation 14 yedrs (2621 5 years)
Regional ficenses 4 years (2021 § years)
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Acquisition of Incentive FM Group Limited

On 25 May 2027, the Group acquired 100% of the voting shares of Incentive FM Geaup Limited, a private company based
in the UK that heads up 2 group of businesses that pravide facilities management services, The Group acguired Incenlive
FM Group and it's subsidianes ecause it has an excellent reputation within the facilities management industry and acquiring
il brings proven service expertiee in 3 numbar of sectors which compfement and enharce the Group's existing offerings.
This acquisition will be usad as 2 base to drive further growth in the retail and leisure spaces as well and providing enhanced
regionat and sactor capabiities within the lechnical services and cleaning business areas. The specialist cleaning division
% also 2 key area of focus o fook at how we can expand these offerings and leverage their capabifiies acress our exisiing
customer basa,

Assets agguired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabiliies of \ncentive FM Group Limited as at the date of acquisition were:

Fair value
recoygnised
on
acquisition
£m
Assats

Property, pland and equipmaeant 0.2
Right-of-use assels 1.5
Cash and cash equivaients 8.1
Trach: meceivables 8.0
Other receivables 33
Inventory 0.3
intangible assets - cuslomer base 238
) 422

Liabilities
Trade payabies 7.8
Other payables 171
Lease tablites 1.5
Contract liabiilies 16
Corporation tax lighiilty 0.4
Deferred tax Liabitity 59
oG4t
Total identifiabla net assets at fair value 8.1
Geodwill ansing on acquisihion 229
Purchase consideration transferred R 3z.1

The Group measurad the acquired lease Habilities using the presant value of the remaining lease payments at the date of
acquisiion. The right-of-use assels were measured at an amount equal 1o the lease Babilitiss.

Tne deferred 1ax fability mainly comprises the lax effect of the accelerated depraciation for tax purposes of intangibie assels.
The goodwil! ot £23,908,223 comprises the vaiue of expected synergies ansing from the acquisifion. Gnodwill is allocated
entirely ta the FM division of the company. Under IAS 38, the Group has also recognised an intangible asset for the customer
base of Incentive FM Group valued at £23.8m.

As part of the purchase agreement with the previous owner of Incentive FM Group Limited, deferred consideration of £7.1m
was recognised al the acquisition date which was paid to the previous pwner in May 2023, one year afler the acquisition
data.

From the date of acguisiion, the Incentive FM Group contribuled revenue of E84,624,080 and EBITDA of £2 565,000 from
continuing operations of the Group during 2022,

&il



13.

Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Motes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Ducember 2022

Acquisition of incentive FM Group Limited (continued)

Transachon coats of £900 000 were expensed and are included in non-underlying expenses.

Purchase consideration

Cash
Deterred consideration liability
Total consideration

Analysis of cagsh flows an acquisition

Purchase corsideration

Net cash acquired wilh the subsidiary

Transaction costs attribuiable o acquisition (nole 8)
MNet cash flow on acquisition

Goodwill

Group

Cosi

At 31 Decembar 2021

Retogrused on acquisibon of subsidianes
At 31 Dacember 2022

Accumulated impairment fossas
Ad 31 December 2021
At 31 Decamber 2022

Net book amourdt
At 31 Dacember 2021
At 31 December 2022

250

7.1
121

(25.00

5.1
o9

(20.8)

Goodwill

3603
Kz
3967

(51
=)

318.0
3454

Goodwill 15 alioeated to the Group's cash-genacating units {"CGUS) identified according o the operabons baing perfurmed.

The goodwill assocated wilh the Group's Cleaning operation is £124.1m (20921 £124 1m), the Secunly operation is £4 2m
(2021: £4.2m), the Catering uperation s £43.5m {2021: £43.5m), the Technical Services/Projects operation 1s £105 Im
{2021: £105.0m) and the Imegrated Solutions operation £68.6m (2021: £41.2m). The recoverable amount of all of the
Group’'s aperations CGUS is determined based on the value in use calculations using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets and long—range pians approved by management covering a five-year paeriod which are prepared as part of
tha Group's normal planning process. The Group considers that a five-year period is a suitable fength of assessment gwven

the strength of the customer relationships it holds and the reputation that it has buill up in the marketplace.

Other major assumptions are as follows:

2022 Cleaning

Discount rate %
Shert term growth rate *.
Long-term growth rate *:

2021 Cleaning
Discount rate %% 9.0
Short term growth rate % 82
Long-term growth rate % 3

wr

Security
80
B.1

Security
9.0
30

Cataring
6.9
32

Catering
9.0

14.7

3

Technical
Saervices/
Projects
6.0

61

3

Technical
Searvices!
Projecta
9.5

98

3

integrated
Solutions

263

Integrated
Solutions
90

189

3
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Goodwill (continued)

The growth msles used are basad on both historical growth rales achieved by the aperations and expected fulure growih
rales based on the medium-term sirategy for the business and opportunities in the markatplaca. The shonter-term growth
rates take in to account COVID- 18 recavery in the business over the next 1-2 years. The long-term growth rate is used lo
caiculate the terminal vadue of the CGU in perpetuity. The discount rate is based on the Group's weighiad average cast of
capital adjusted for specific nsks relating to the relevant secior. The Group is required o test, on an annual basis, whether
goodwill has suffered any impairment. Tha recoverable amount is delermined based on value in use calcuiations. The use
of this method requires the estimation of future cash flaws and the determination of a discount rate in order to calculate the
present vaiue of the cash Rows.

If the terminat growth rates were to reduca by 1.0% or the discount rate were 1o increase by 1.0%, for all CGUs thare would
be no indication of impairment (2024 no indiation of impairment).

Property, plant and equipment
Freehold Shortterm,
land and leasehold Plant and Motor Camgputer Fixtures

Group buildings  praperty machinery vehicles squipment and fittings Total

£m £m £rm Em £m £m £m
Cost
At 31 December 2020 % 5.0 14.1 17.7 8.8 9.5 57.0
Additions al cost - 0.8 58 6.8 0.9 1.7 15.8
Cisposals - 0.5} (8.5 {4.2% - (47} [18.0)
Transfers a.1 0.1 (3.5} - 0.1 3¢ 07
At 31 December 2021 3.2 6.3 1.9 20.1 1.6 10.4 55.5
Additions at cost - 12 78 108 35 23 255
Additions on acguisition 3.2 - 02 0.3 0.3 - 1.0
Disposals - (1.7 {5.5) {3.8) (0.1 (0.9 {11.8)
At 31 December 2022 T a4 58 10.2 27.6 114 118 702
Accumuinted Depreciation
At 31 December 2020 0.2 2.4 4.1 8.0 4.4 6.9 23.7
Charges for the year 0.1 1.6 4.1 6.2 (5K} 2.4 152
Disposals - 0.3) (7.5) {3.8) - (23} {15.1)
Transfers - - - - - 03 03
At 31 December 2021 Cer a7 07 84 50 ad 24.2
Charges ior the year a1 15 5% 78 17 29 183
Depreciation on acquisiion .1 - 0.1 - 03 - 2.5
Disposals - a2 (5.0) (3.4) - (0 8} (1G4}
At 3% Decamber 2022 T s 4.0 13 128 70 2.2 136
Net book amaunt
At 31 December 202 1 29 2.5 7.2 1.7 2.6 4.3 31.3
At 31 Decemnber 2022 2.9 1.8 8.8 15.0 44 38 36.6




Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

15.Leases

Property, ptant and squipmant compnse cwned and leased assets that do naf mest the definition of investment property.

Group
Property, plant and equipment owned
Right-of-use assets

2022 2821
£ £Em
18.3 188
17.3 13.4
36.6 32.2

The Group leases many assets including fand and building, vehicles. machinery and [T equipment. information about leases

for which the Group s 2 esses is presenied below.

Right-ol-use assets Froperty Vehicles QOther Total
Group £m £m £fm £€m
Balance at 31 December 2020 2.0 118 G4 14.2
Additions for the year 2.5 B8 - 71
Disposais for the year ()] (3.7} 0.6) {4.9)
Depreciation charge for the year (10} (6.1) ©.2) (7.3)
Depraciation on disposals 0.3 34 0.6 43
Balance at 31 December 2021 1.2 120 ) 0.2 13.4
Additions for the year 1.2 109 1.3 134
Disposals for the year 1.0y (3.5} (0.1} {5.3)
Depreciation charge for the year {0.9) (7.5} (0.4} (8.8}
Bepraciation on disposals 1.2 3 0.1 4.5
Balance at 31 December 2022 1.0 152 C1a 17.3
Lease Habilities 2022 2021
Group Em £€m
Maturity analysis - confractual undiscountad cash fows

Less than one year 8.5 6.9
Grne to five years 12.4 8.8
More than five years 0.2 g 1
Tota! undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 December 208 15.6
Lease labiities included in the stalement of financial position al 31 December

Current 8.9 58
Nan-current 1.1 82

180 Ta
Lease liabilities 2022 20
Group £m £
ALY January 141 14.3
Additions 13.4 71
Disposals (0.9} 07
Accretions of inlerest {notu 9) 0.8 1.1
Payment {8.5) {8 3}
18.0 141




Atalian Servest Holdings Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

For tha year ended 31 Decemnber 2022

Leases (continued)

There are no formal extension options within the Group's portiolio of leases. Early break termination cptions are inctuded in
a number of property leases. The right-of use asset and lease liabiity are caleulated with referance 10 the early break date
unless il is reasonably Cerain that these termination options are not geing to be executed.

Amounts recagnised in statement of profit or loss 2022 2021

Group Em fm

Interesi an Ieass labilities 0.9 1.1

Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows 2022 2021

Group Em £m

Total cash outflow for leases 9.5 8.3
16. Investments

The following enlity is an assaciste of the Group and has been included in the consolidated financial statements using the
squity method and in the single entily financiat statements at cost:

Proportion of
Group awnership
interest heid

Country of
Nama incorporation Currancy 2022
Boitega Investco SAR L Luxembourg Euro 27 9%

Tha primary business of Bottegs Investco S.A R.L is that of 2 hoiding company for a group of companies thal provides IT
services giobally. The investment will give the Group access to sddilional service lines across new geographical areas in
lie with the strategy of the Group. In 2019, the company was faced with a significant funding shortfall and a major
deterioration in s operational resulls and business ouwlook. The Group decided to nol participate in the funding of a
restructuring plan and decided lo fully depreciale ils share with an according impaet on its income statement {see nute 8 for
further detail).

This Investrment was fllly impaired durng the year ended 31 December 2019,

invastments in
subsidiary
companies
Company £m
Cosi
At 31 December 2020 2274
lasue of share capital 220
At 31 Decamber 2021 24G.4
Issue of share capital .
At 31 Decambar 2022 248.4

An impairment sssessment was performed af the Company level and no impaiment was noted.
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Investments (continued)

The Company has guarantesd the liabilities of the following subsidiaries {with the exception of Atalian Servest Limited) in
order that they qualify for the exemption from audit under Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of tha vear

ended 31 Decesnber 2022
Narneo
Subsrdiary undurtakings

Atglian Servest Group
Haoirfings Limited

Atattan Servest Group
Lirmted"

Atalian Sarvest Limited”

Atalian Sarsest Sacurity
Limited®

Servest treland Limited™

Ataliary Servest Food Co
Limited®

Atalian Sensest Managed
Services Limited”

Alalian Sarvest AMIK
Limited™

Thermolach Solutions
Limited*
Ensco 1184 Limted™

Fire and Air Services
L irmited®

Thermotach Mechameal
Services Limited®

Thermoctech Fire
Protection Limited™

Oakwaood Technology
Group Lsmited”

Oaiwood Air Conditicrung
Limted”

Atalian Servest Pest
Control Limerd®

Registered
numbar

037896003

0aG221e8

06385228

(04376463

613862

(32569158

0526144

SC033488

08586374

10348670

(6473866

Q7752566

02787244

(02400512

01288124

04010488

Ragistered

Servest House
Bury Si. Edmunds
Suffolk, P28 6LG

Servest House
Bury St Edmunds
Suffalk, 1P2B 6L.G

Servest Housa
Bury St Edmunds
Suffolk, 1P28 LG

Servest House
Bury 8t. Edmunds
Sulolk, P28 LG

88 Hamcourt Street,
Dublin 2, D02
D18

Servest House
Bury 81, Edmunds
Suffolk, 1P28 8L.G

Servest House
Bury Si. Edmunds
Suffolk. IPZ28 6LG

42 Dryden Road
Loantead
Midlothian,
EHZ20 8L2

Servest House
Bury Si. Edmunds
Sutfolk, IP28B 61L.G

Servest House
Bury St. Edmunds
Suffolk, P28 6L.G

Servest House
Bury St Edmunds
Suffolk, P28 6LG

Servest House
Bury St. Edrmunds
Suffolk, IP2B 6LC

Servest House
Bury St. Edmunds
Suffolk, IF28 8L.G

Servest House
Bury Si. Edmunds
Suffalk, (P28 8L.G

Servest House
Bury 5! Edmunds
Suffoik, IP28 6LG

Servest House
Bury 8t. Edmunds
Suffolk, P28 6LG

Class of

Ordinary

Crdinary

Ordinary

Crdinary

Ordinary

Crdinary

Ordinary

Qrdinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Crdinary

Ordinary

Crdinary

Ordinary

Crcinary

Proportion of
address shares hefd ownership interest

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

0%

1400%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

160%

100%

Principal activities
Haoiding company
Holding company

Holding company,

facilities managemant
and group adminisiration

Securily services

Cleaning and
catering services

Catering sarvices

Catering services

Maintenance services

Maintenance servicas

Dormant company

Rolding company

Mairlenance services

Maintenance services

Maintenance sesvices

Dormani company

Past control services



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yaar endaed 31 December 2022

Investments (continued)

Subwsichery undertakings
Servesi House _
Servest Akirion Limited” 11168582 Bury St. Edmunds Orciinary % Holding company
Sufiolk, P28 8LG
1 Hawksworth Rd
. . Central Park . "
- 3 - P = § 0
Aktrion Holamys Limited 05248035 Telford, Shropshire Ordinary T Holding company
TF2 97U
1 Hawkgworih Rd
. T . Central Park . a ;
Akiron Group Lanited 03836890 Telford, Shropshire QOrdinary 100% tolding company
TF29TU
Fupgerstraile 15
. HIRB CEL-04158 . a Automotive
Aktrion GmbH 139987 Leipzig Qredinary 10 yuality contrel
Cermany
1 Hawlksworth Rd
Akirion Manufastuedng ' Central Park - ., Automotive
Suppurt Services Limited™ (03458202 Teiford, Shropshire Ordinary I quaiity control
TF2 9TU
P.1. Juan Cardos !
. . 46440 Aimussafes " ‘ Automotive
: - 3484 : G
Aktnon lbenia St gevt 5 Valencia Ordinary o quality conirol
Spain
42 Drydan Road ;

S Manufacturing support,
Alalian Servest integrated ¢~y (hagq Loanhead o0y $0%, logistics and faciities
Selutions Limiled Midiothian, management

EMI0 L2
1 Hawksworth Rd
TN 1y Cenfral Park .
QF International Limite (3236531 Telford, Shropshire Ordinary 1G5%: Doermant company
TFEZ2 9TU
Ut Stami Stok 83 .
. “rr " 00003 ) ) Automoiive
Akirion Podand 5P 70 0 01002 43-300 Bielskn Qrdinary 100% quaiity vt
Foland
MHU-2900 Kormarom
. . 13-09- . Automotive
Aktrion Hungary KFT 113228 Laktanya kr?jnggﬁ Ordinary 100% quality control
Cesky Tasin
. . e Smelanava ) e Automotive
Aktrign CZ 8. R.0O 27525325 1912115 Ordinary 10605, quality contral
PsC 737 o1
48-52 1.C Bratianu
. . . Boudgeargd ) - Automotive
Akinon Romama S R4 27438160 Bitesh Crdinary O quality contral
Romania
Rua Fret Joagquim
Akirian Portugal, . de Sania Rosa de . " Automotive
Unipussoal LDA* 513361286 Viterbg  Cronaty Vit quality control
Portugal
Pemberon House
- Stafford Court
;"g:a ‘;ﬁ;ﬂf :i S— (5472405 Stafford Park Ordinary 100% F acilities managemant
ag Tetford, Shropshire
TF3 380
58 Boulevard
. e . 493 599 Jacguard . iy Autamotive
Akirion Franee SAS 756 69400 Cataie Crdinary 1, quality control
France



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Investments (continued)

Subswdiary undertakings

Akinon Siovalda 5.R.0O°

Aktnon Gasser UK
Lirmnted”

Aktricn Beigum”

tncentive FM Group*

Incentive QAS Limited *

Specialist Window
Cleaning Limitaed”

Incantive Facllilies
Management Limited®

Incentive Consullancy
Lirrated”

Wes (Holdings) Limied”

incentive TEC Lamited®

Air Condihorung
Lconomics (Heddings)
{mted”

tocettive Fi Limiled™

incentive Support
Services Limited”

Weston Flectncal &
Mechanical Services
Limmled”

J65hHB616

08545839

0783313091

QB757544

02477344

07710927

04324848

08579138

10203608

(1838293

05572887

10467253

05687189

08213757

Phagisticka 2
84901 Nilra
Slovakia

§ Hawksworth Ra
Central Park
Teffard,
Shropshire

TF2 9Ty
Boulevard
International 55
Andertecht

1070

Bedgium

Vicon MHouse,
Westam Way,
Bury St Edmunds,
Suffolk, IP33 ISP
Wicon House,
Westem Way.
Bury $1 Edmunds,
Suftolk, 1P33 ISP
Vicon House,
Westam Way,
Bury St Edmunds.
Suffolk, IP33 3SP
Vicon Hoeuse,
Waesterm Way.
Bury St Edmunds,
Suffaik, 1P33 38F
Vicen House,
Western Way,
Bury §t Edmunds,
Suffolk, P33 35P
Vicon House,
Weslemn Way,
Bury St Edmunds,
Suffalk, P33 ISP
Vicon Housa,
Wesiem Way,
Bury St Edmunds,
Suffolk, 1733 35P
Vicon House.,
Western Way,
Bury $t Edmunds,
Suffoik, IP33 ISP
Vicon House,
Westam Way,
Bury St Edmungds,
Suffali, P33 38P
Vicon Housa,
Western Way,
Bury St Edmunds,
Suffolk, 1P33 ASF
Vicon Housa.
Westem Way,
Bury St Edmunds,
Suffolk, IP33 ISP

h
~l

Ordinvary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Qrdinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

180°%

1005

100%

RRALe 2N

3505

0%

RA LN

1%

106G%,

il

0

1

1004,

Automotive
quality controf

Automotive

quality conirol

Automotive
guality conirof

Holding company

Cleaning services

Cleaning Services

Facilibes management

Consultancy services

Halding company

Maintenance services

Holding company

Dormant company

Darmant company

Dormant Company
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 Decamber 2022
Investments (continued)

10210337 Vicon House, Ordinary 0%
Incentive TEC Fire & Western Way,
Security Syglems Bury §t Edmunds,
Limited® Suffolk, IF33 38P
Vicon House,
Waston Electricsl Westemn Way, o
Services Limited” 03825111 Bury St Edmunds, Ordinary 1005
Suffalk, P33 38F
Vicon House,
Ace Environmeantal Westem Way, . "
Enginegring Limited” 01782534 Bury St Edmunds, Ordinary 130%
Suffolk, P33 38P
Vican House,
Incantive Lynx Security . Wastem Way, py;
Limited” 01719380 Bury 8t Edmunds, Orcinary 1
Suficlk. IF33 ISP
Vicon House,
ARL Support Services Waestem YWay, " o
Limited” 05636696 p ry St Edmunds,  Cromary 0%
Suffoik, IF33 3SP
Joitd ventures
Aktrion K&S Quality a132041 1MA Changzhou N 4
Salutions {Chang Zhou) PO4TT48 China  Ordinary a0
Cuo. Limited”
Taormina 2388
Aktrion Latam 5.A." 2175384709 Montevidea 11500 Ordinary 50%%
Uruguay
Rua Visconde do
Ric Branco
. . 13837740 Sao Jose dos "
Aktricn Brazi LTDA EpP 001-85 Blnhais Crdinary 4%
Parana
Brazil
20- Bonpland 1343
Aktrion Argenting S A ¢ 7143568708 1 414 Buerios Aires Ordinary 8%
Argenting
Associales
9 Aliée Scheffer
Botiega Investco S.A B215744 Luxembourg City  Ordinary 27 9%
’ Lusarmboury
Tecnicas Logisticas Tenar Garcia
b . Romera 2 46015 . ”
Sistemas E Ingeneriy BEB3I10964 : Ordinary 3%
sp+ Valencia
Spain
" denotes indirect holdings
Inventories
2022
Group £m
Consumabties 3.7
3.7

Maintenance services

Dormarn company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Darmani company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Dormant company

Holding cormpany

Logistics Process
Engineearing and

Software Development

2021
£m

a3
33

The total cust of consumables expensed in the year and included within cost of sales is £98.8m (2021 £78.6m).

58
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year anded 31 December 2022

Trade receivables

2022 2021
Group £m £m
Trade receivables 107.5 94 4
Loss allowance (8.5} 31}

101.0 91.3

2022 2021
Company £ £m
Trade receivabies 44 1.8
Amcunts due from group undestakings 1.2 -

6.3 1.6

Classification as trade receivables

Trade mceivables are amourds due from customers for gonds sold or services perdormed m the erdinary course of business,
They are genwrally due for settierrent within 30 days and therafore are ail classified as curreri. Trade receivables ase
recognisad inially st the amount of consideration that is uncondltional unless they contain significant financing components,
when they are recogmsed at fair valus. The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective {o coitect the contrachual
cash fows and therefore measuras them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Details about
the Group's impairment policies and the calgulation of the logs allowance arg provided in note 1.

Transierred receivables

The Group Mnancas a porbon of its working capital through a trade receivables sale programme comprising factoring
agreements which al the year-end represenied a maximum of £41 3m (2021: £39 6m) worth of factored receivables.

During the year e limit on this non-recourse facility increaged from £50m to £85m, therefore the Group has transferred
subistardiaily aff the risks and rewards of ownarship. The Group has been mandated by the factoring company o manege
oo their behall the recovery of the receivables that have been sold to them. Cashfiows reiating 10 the working capital facifity
are shown within cash gererated from operations.

Fair values of trade receivables
Due o the short-term nature of irade receivabies, the camrying value is assumed lo equal the fair value,
Impairment and risk exposure

Plegse see nate 28 for further details of impairment and risk exposure.

Other receivables
2022 2021
Group £m £m
Oiher recaivables 119 9.3
Amounts owed by parent undedaking 5.4 6.3
Prepayments 6.4 - 20
B T 23z 17

Other receivables mclude amounts relaling to client retentions and suppfier rebales.

S



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year anded 31 Decamber 2022

29. Other loans and receivables

21.

2022 2021
Group £m £m
Other long term receivables 0.2 3.2

A balance of £0.2m {2021: £0.2m) loan note is due from Liewellyn Smith Limited. As Llewallyn Smith Limited has been
dissaived at Companies House during 2022 the directors have made a 100% bad debt provision against this receivatle,
however they are continuing to gursue recovery of the monies through the previous Llewellyn Smith Limited Company
Directors.

2022 2021
Company £m £m
Amounts due from group urdertakings 355.1 33041

Amounts due from group undertakings relate lo loans with subsidiaries that are repayabie n May 2025, interest accrues on
thie loan at 5.86% per annum. Since initial recognition, the amounts due from group undertakings has nol seen a significant
increase in the exposure 1o credit risk. The Group has considerad fulure possible cutcomes in this assessmeant. As a result,
ny allowance for axpacted cradit iosses have been racognised in relation to the recaivable.

Trade and other payables

Group 2022 2021
Current £m Em
Trade payables 38.5 316
Payroll related payebles 41.8 28.2
VAT 21.0 182
Other payables 5.0 7.0
Accruals 37.4 320
Contingenl consideration 71 ~ -
T 150:3 T Wﬁﬂ}

Trade payables are unsacured and are usually paid within 45 days of recognition. The carrying amounts of trade and other
payatles are considered lo be the same as their fair values, due to their short-lerm nature.

Company 2022 2021
Current Em £m
Trade payabies - -
Cther payables 0.3 0.3
Oiher lpans awed to shareholders 8.6 -
o a.émww o 9.3

22.Borrowings

2022 2024
Group £m Em
MNon-current
Other loans owed o sharehoiders 173.0 1427
o 173.0 1427
Current o ' -
Working capital facility 413 86
413 . 98
Totat borrowings 2143 7 4823




Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2022

Borrowings (continued)
Other Inans owed to sharehoidars

The other lvans owed 16 sharsholders is made up of several loans with La Financigre Atalian S.A.S. The loans hgve vanous
repaymeant dates and accrue interest at 5.96%. Please see note 32 for details of subsequent changes (o loan facilities.

Working eapital facility

The Group finances a porbon of s working capital through 3 Irade receivables sale programme comprising factoring
agreaments which at the year-end represented 3 maximum of £41.3m (2021: £39 6m} worth of laciored meceivabies.

During the year the limit on this mon-recourse facility mncreased from E50m io £65m, therefore the Group has transierred
substanually all the risks and rewards of gwaership. The Group has been mandated by the faclorng company ¢ manage
on their behall the recovery of the receivables thal have been sold to them, Cashflows relating lo the working capital facifity
are shown within cash generated from operations.

2022 2021
Company £m £m
Non-current
Cther luans owed o shareholders 164.4 142.7
Totzl berrowings 164.4 142.7

QOthar ioans owed to shareholders

The other loans owed o shareholders is with La Financiére Atallan 5.A.S. The loan is repayabie in May 2025 and accrues
interast at 5.968%

The below lable sels oul an analysis of net dedbt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.

Assets Liabiiities from finaancing activities
Current Mon-currant
Cash Batlances Waorking
on with capitai Lease Loans to Lease
hand hanks facility Liabilities Shareholder Liakilities
{note 25) {note 25] | ({(note 22} {nate 15) {note 22) {note 15§) Total
£m Em £m £m £m £m £m
Mei debt as al
31-Deg-20 0z 152 {7.8) 15.5) {170.5) 9.3) (177.8)
Cash flowsy 02 {4.73 {31.8} 4.4 7.2 38 (20.8)
Other movements - - - (4.7} 20.6 {2.8) 3.1
31-Dec-21 0.4 10.% (38.5) (5.9} {142.7} {8.2) (185.5)
Cash flows 071) 5.4 (1.7} 9.5 - - 13.1
Cther movernents - - - {10.5} {30.3) {2.9} {43.7)
3-Dec-22 0.3 15.8 (41.3) (6.9} (173} (11.1) (216.1)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2022

23. Deferred tax

Group
Daferred lax assels
Deferred tax lishilibes

Defarrad ux assets/tliabilties) comgprise:
Fixen asset temporary differences
Acguired o husiness combimation

Taxable losses carned forward
At 31 December

The provasion for deferred tax is made up as follows:

At 31 Decamber 2020

Recognised in the statemant of profit or loss

At 31 Decamber 2621

Acatssition of subsidiaries

Recognised in the statement of profit or loss

At 31 Decamber 2022

2022 2021
£m £m
11.3 121
{122) (9.6)
{0.8) 25
022 2022 2021 2021
Assets Liahilities Asgats Liabilities
£m £m £ £m
23 - 1.9 -
- {12.2) - (8.8}
9.0 - 10.2 -
11.3 {12.2} 12.1 {9.8}
Fixed assat
and other Losses and
Acguired temporary other
intangibias differences dedictions Total
£m Em £m £m
(8.7} 1.7 3.4 2.4
{0.9) 0.2 0.8 D1
{9.9) 1.9 10.2 2.5
(4.7} . - (4.7)
2.1 {04) {v.2) 1.3W
{12.2) 23 8.0 (0.9)




Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
Far the year ended 31 December 2022

24. Equity
2022 2621
Allotfed. calfed up and fully paid £m £m
216,920,000 Ordinary sharaes of £1 each 216.9 216.9
219 860,258 Preferred sharas of £1 each & 220.0 220.0
4389 436.9

in 2021 an additional £22m of preferance shares wene issued by OCS UK&! Group Holdings Limited (formerly Atalian
Servest Group Holdings Limited) following the capitalisation of a £22m debt that was payabie to its shareholders.

Accumutated profit and loss

Accumulated profil and loss acoount represent cumulative profits ar losses, net of dividends paid {2022: £10.8m, 201
£11.8m)} and olher adjustments

freference shares

Freference shares represaents the non-redeemabie preferred shares held by the Company's holding company, Atalian
Europe S.A. which were issued in consideration of the discharge and setlement of £220.0m of the debt owed by ine
Company.

Share capital
Calied up share cspital reserve reprasents the nominal vaiue of the shares issued.

25.Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalemnts consist of cash on hand, balances with banks and balances within working capital facilities. Cash
and cash equivalents in the statement of cash Nows comprise the folfowing amounts:

2022 2621
Group £m £m
Cash in hand 0.3 c4
Balances wilh banksg 15.9 105
Cash and cash equivaients 16.2 10.9

Significant non-cash transactions

During the year the Gruup acquired proparty, plant and equipmant with a total cost of £25.5m (2021 £135 8m) of which
£13.4m (2021 £7.1m) were acquired by means of ieases. Leases and hire purchase are secured on the asseats o which

they relate,

2022 2021
Cempany £m £m
Balances with banks - {0 4)
Cash and (overdraft) balance - (0.4)
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26. Cantingent liabilities

27.

As disclused in note 16, the Company's subsidiaries have laken advantage of the exemption avaflable under Sechian 473A
of the Companies Aci 2006 in respect of the requirement for audif. As a condition of the exemption, the Company has
guaranteed the year-end liabilities of the relevant subsidiaries until they are settled in full. The Habilities of the subsiciaries
af the year-and was £214,179.000 (2021: £204,655,000),

Retirement benefit obligations
The Group pensicn arrangements are operated through a defined contribution scheme and a Group definad benafit scheme

Deatined contribution scheme

20322 2021
£m Em
Arnount recognised as an expense 8.1 5.9

The Group is part of 8 locat authority defined benefit pension scheme. This is 3 mulfi-armployer scheme and therefore is
aceounied for as a defined contnhution scheme and the contributions are included in the above figures.

Defined benofit scheme

The Group operates 3 final salary defined benefit pension scheme. Empioyees pot padticipating in a defined benefil scheme
are eligibie to join a defined conlribution scheme,

The scheme provites emplayees with a pension benefit based on final pensionable pay. The schama is funded by the
Company and employees. Cantributions by the Company are calculated by a separate acluarial valuation based on the
funding policies detailed in the scheme agreemenl. The latest iriennial valuation was compieted on 30 September 2021,

The scheme is lagsally separate from the Group and administered by a separate fund. The board of the fund is made up
solely of an independent trusies. By law, the board is required (o act in the best interest of participants to the schemes and
has the responisitility of sefting Invasiment, cantribution, and other relevant policies.

The scheme 18 exposed to a number of risks, inciuding:

+ Investment risk: invesiment returns on the schema’s assels may be lower than anticipated, espaciolly if fals n
asset values are not maiched by similar falls in the vaiue of scheme Habilities.

. fnl{eresa‘ rate rsk: mavement in discount rale usad (high quality corporate bonds) will change the defined benefit
obligation.

*  Longewvily risk. schermme members may live longer than assumed, for example due lo unanticipaled advance m
medicai healthcars.

»  Salary risk: increase i lulure salaries increases the gross defined benefit obligation.

+  Legisiative changes couid also lead o an increase in scheme Kabilities.

The Group has determined that, in accordanee with the terms and condilions of the defined benefit plan, and with statutory
requirgments (including minimurm funding requiremants) for the plan, the present vahme of refunds or reductions in future
contributions is higher than the balance of the total fair value of the plan assets less the total present value of obligations.
As such, no defined benefil asset was recognised at 31 December 2022

The Group expects (o pay FD.3m in contributions to ils defined benefil plan in 2023, The approximate overall duration of the
scheme defincd benefit obligations at 31 December 2022 is 15 lo 20 years.

64
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Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

2022 2021
£m £m
Statement of financal position obligations
- Fair value of assels at end of pericd 21 2.9
- Presont value of obligstions at end of period (1.7} (2.4)
- Asset ceiling nol recognised {0.4) (0.5}
- Asset/(lability} at 31 Dacember - .
Defined pension benefiis
- Related deferrad tax assal - -
Liakility in the statemant of financial position - -
Statement of profit or loss charge mciuded in
operating profit
- For defined pension benefils 0.2 0.2
8.2 0.2
Defined henefit Fair vaiua of Net dafined
obtigation pian assats pensfiiassat
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 202
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Al beginning of paricd {2.4) {2.0) 28 2.5 0.5 0.9
Service cost ard interest
Current service Cost 0.2) 16.2) - - (0.2} (0.2)
Inlerest expense on defined benghit
obligaton - - (1.1} {0.2) (1.3 {0.2)
Total defined benefit axpense recognised N o
in profit of 1088 gn 9.2) 0-2) (1.1} {02) 13y ¢4
Remeastrement loss
Actuanial lussdgain) from;
- Financiat assumptions 0.9 (] - - 0.9 0.1
- Adjustmenis {experience} - (0.2) - - - (0.2}
N MOMS 0.1 - - 0.9 0.1)
Total defined benefit loss 0.7 (0.3) (1.1 (0.2} ©4 (05
Cashiltwe
Employer coniributions - - a3 02 4.3 0.2
Beanefils paid - @.1) - - - 6.1}
- 0.1 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.1

At 31 Decamber . (2.8 2.1 29 0.4 0.5
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Retirement henefit obligations {continued)

Actual returmn on plan assets

The curreni service cosl has been recognised within cost of sales and the interest cost and expected retum have been

recognrisad within finance income

The fair value of the scheme assets consists of:

2022 2021

£m £m

Equity instruments 0.2 0.3

Property and other assels 1.8 B 2.6
S 23 ; szsmw

Priscipat actuardal assumptons at the statement of financial position date (expressed as weighted averages) are as follows:

2022 2021
Discount rute 4.680% +.80%
Futurs salary wcreases 3.00% 3.20%
Future pension inareases 3.00% 3.20%
Proportion of empigyees opling v early retirement 3.00% 3.20%
Retait price index {RE)) 3.00% 3.20%
Longewly at retrement age (current penaioners}
- Matas 26.3 26.2
- Females 29.0 28.9
Langevity at relirement age {future pensioners)
- Males 275 27.5
« Famaies A 301

Sensitivity analysis

The increuse n the defined benefit obligation of a reasonably possible change to one acluanal assumplion, holding all olher

assumptions constant, s presented in the table below

Reasonably 2022
Actuarial assumption possible change £m
Discount rate 0.5% G
Inflation 0.5% oA
Future mortahkty rates 1 year -
Actuanal assumption pmsg:’;:;ib;z 2(;:2;‘
Discount rate 0.5% a4
inflatiun 0.5% G.1
Future martatty rales 1 year g1
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28.Financial assets and financial Jiabilities

Classes and fair value of financial instruments

2022 2021
£m Em
Finanaal assels at amortised cost
Assels as per the statement of financial position
Trade recaivables (note 18} 1410 91.3
Other recenvadies {note 18) 17.3 156
Other lnans and receivables (nole 20) 0.2 02
Cash and cash squivalents (nhate 25) 162 B o ‘103
Total T 7S 2R T ¥

All of the above items are reated as financiai assels at amortised cosi. Fair value is the same as book value for ali of the
ahove assets,

2022 2021
£m £m
Financial fiabidities at amorfised cost
Liahiiities as per the slatement of financial position
Trade payables (nole 21} 38.5 6
Other payabies {now 21) 50 70
Accrudts inole 21) 37.4 320
Currant burrowings (note 22} 41.3 398
Mon-current borrowmgs (nate 22) 173.0 142.7
{aease labiities {note 15) 18.0 4.1
Total 3132 2670

All oi ther shove Rnancial Babdities are treated gs held at amortised cost. Fair vahue 15 approximately ihe same as book vaiue
for ail of the zbove assets.

Other payables in the labie above are contractuai cbiigations to deliver cash or another financial asset o another enlity
whereas [he gther payabies within note 21 also include statutory fems that are not contractual.

Within the sharehokiers agreemenl for the investment in Botlega wesice S.A RL, there is a put right that enlitles the
Company the rnghl to obiligate the majonty shareholder, Digital Portfolo Heldings LLC. (o acquirs alt shares heid by OCS
UK&: Group Holdings Limited (formarly Alalian Sarvest Group Hoidings Limited), a subsidiary company, for fair value. The
put nght s exercisable from the siddh anniversary of the agreement and continues indefinitely. Thare is a corresponding call
tight commencing from the sixth anniversary and obligates the Company to sell their sharehoicing o Digital Portfoiio
Moldings LLC. As al 31 December 2022, no vaiue has been atiributed to this denvalive basead on the investiment valug being
materially comparable o the year end lair value of the invasiment of which the vaiue of the derivative would be based.

The group has no olher financial mstruments measured at fair value.
Financial risk management

The Grmup's cgeratians expase ¢ to a number of financial nsks, primarily cradit risk and avadabiiity of capiat © fund future
growth. A risk Managemenlt programme has heen established 1o protect the Group against the poteniial adverse affects of
these financial risks

ol
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Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)

Cradit risk

Concentrations of Gredit nsk with raspect to custemers are closely monitored by the Directors, and although the Group has
a number of significant customaers, there are also a large number of othar customers in place which reduce the concentration
of rigk 10 an acceptable lavel. Customers are assessed for creditworthiness. The Croup has credil insuranca over a large
prapartion of the debior balances and credit limits are also imposed on cusiomers and reviewad regutary. The deblors age
analysis 15 evaiuated on 3 regqular basis for potential doubtfut debts,

The Group has a policy of holding surplus furkds wilh aporoved high-quality banks. At the year-end date, the Group held
funds of £9.2m (2021; £10.4m) with Lioyds Bank pie and funds of £8.7m (2021: Nil} with Barclays Bank Pic .

The Group's maxmum exposure (o credil risk is:

2022 2021
Financial asss(s £m £m
Trade receivables (note 18) 101.0 91.3
Other receivables (note 19) 17.3 15.6
Cther loans and recsivables (nate 20) 0.2 0.2
Cash and cash equivalents (note 25} 16.2 10.9
An analymis of trade receivabies:
 Meithes
Carrying impaired
2022 amount: norpastdue  Past due but not impaired
More than
61-9C days 90 days
£m Em £&m £m
Trade raceivablis 1w g2 4.5 4.4
| Naither
Carrying imipained
2021 amount nor-pastdue  Past due but not impaired
. More than
) §1-90 days 90 days
Em “Em £m £m
Trade receivabics 81.3 82.4 1.6 7.3

The Group’s deblor payment period varies depending on invoiting arrangements with customers. The average dehtor
payment period I8 44 days (2021: 47 days). The Group made a loss allowance against rade receivables using the ECL
method of £6.8m (2021: £3.1m). The movement in the loss allowance is included in admivistrative expenses in the income
statement,

Market risk

Markel risk is the nsk that the fair value or flure cash flows of our financial instruments will fucluate beeause of charges in
markat prices. The Group is expased to the market risks m terms of fluctualions in interest rates, but this only impacts a
small portion of the Group's Dorrowing as a majority is at 4 fixed rate. The Group also has a smail exposure o foreign
exchange risk due 1o tans denominated In Euros, Na hedging Instruments have been entered as the risk is considered
immaterial,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Financiai assets and financial liabilities (continued)
Interest rate risk

Interest rate exposure and sensitivity analysis

Carrying Average ifinterest rates were 1% If interest rates were 1%

2022 amount interest rate higher iowar
Pre-tax Pre-lax

profit Equily profit Equity

Financial assels £m o £m £m £m £m

Cauh and cash equivalents (nole 25) 15.8 - Q.2 4.2 0.2} {0.2)
Financrai kabihtias

Lease kabillties {note 15) 18.0 8.5 {0.2) {0 2) 0.2 0.2

Borrowings - non-currers {note 22) 173.4 6.0 (1.7} (1.3 L? ‘ 1.3

0.7} {(1.3) 1.7 1.3

Carrying Avaraga If interest rates were 1%  If interest rates wore 1%

2021 amount interest rate higher iower
Pre-tax Pre-tax

profit Equity profit Equity

Financial asseis £m L £m £m £m £m

Cash and cash equivalents {(note 25) 10.5 - 01 a1 an G.1)

Fisrancial fabdities

Lease fabilities {note 15) 4.1 7.1 o1 (0.1} 0.1 0.1
Borrowings - non-current {note 22) 142.7 §90 (1.4} {1.4) ) 1.4 1.4
{1.4} (1.4) 14 1.4

PRV

The other receivabies (note 2Q) and a portion of the non-current borrowings have been excluded from the above analysis
as these are at a fixed rate of imerest. The average rate is calculated as the waighted average effective inlerast rate.

The rale on cash and cash equivaient balances represents the average rate eamed on cash balances after laking into
acoount bank set-off arrangements.

The tables above show the eftect on profit and equity afler tax if interest rates al that date had been 1% higher or lower with
all variables held constant. taking into account all undertying expoasures. Concurrent moverments in interest rates and paralle!
shifts in the yleld curves are assumed. A sensilivity of 1% has been selected as this is considered reascnable given the
current level of both short-termn and long-term interest rates. When applied to short-term interest rates this would represent
three to four rale increases which is reasonably possible in the current enviranment with the bias coming from the reserve
bani and confirmad by market expectations that interest rates in the UK are more than likely o move up than down in the
coming period



Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group maintains sufficient cash [eveds 10 enable it to meet its llabilities as they fall due and ulifises suppert avaiable
from La Finansigre Atalian 5.A.5. Management review cashflow lorecasts on a regular basis o determine whether the Group
has sufficien! cash raserves tp meet future working capilal reguiremenis and to teke advantage of business apportunities.
The Group has cash of £16.2m at 31 December 2022 (2021 £10.9m). The average creditor payment period is 19 days

{2021 19 days).

Contractual malurity analysis for inancial labillties:

2022

Financial labdiies

Trade and olhar payables {(note 21}
Working capital facility {nole 22)
Sharshaider loan (note 22}

l.ease liabilities [note 15)

2021

Finarncial Babilities

Trade and other payabiles {nole 21}
Working capital facility (note 22}
Sharehaider loan (note 22)

L ease liabilties (nole 15)

Dua or due
in less than
1 month
£m

73.5

Pue
betwean
103
months
£m

8.9

Due
betwean
1ta3

months -

Em
0.7

10.7

g

Duse
betweert Dre
d months  hetweaen 1 Due after
to 1 yaar to§ years 5 years
£fm £m £m
1.8 - .
413 - -
- 173.0 -
11.1 -
1841 -
Due
hetween Due
3months  betwesn 1 fue after
totyear: o35 years 5 years
- Em £m £m
8.7 - -
306 — -
L 142.7 -
‘5.9 8.2 -
51.2 150.9 -

Totai

852
41.3
173.0
18.0
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Atalian Servest Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year endad 31 Decamber 2022

29. Related party transactions

Net loan note and  Amounts owed by related  Amounts owed to
other interest (note 9 party {notes 19 & 21} related party (pote 22)

2022 Em £m £€m
The parent

La Financere Atalien S5.A.8 9.8 54 {#73.0y
Subsidiaries

QS UKAI Group Holuings Linited
{farmerly Atglian Servest Groag Holdings 20 50 3554 -
Limitad)

Mat loan note and other Amounts owed by retated Amounts owed to

inerest (note 9) party (neles 19 & 21} related party (note 23)
2024 £m Em £m
The paiont
La Financidre Atalian § A3 {103y 6.3 {t42.7y
Subsithares
QCE UK&I Group Holdings Limiled
{formerly Atalian Servesl Group Holdings 20.00 330.1 .
tinited)

* Where indicated above, these amounts are related parties at both company and at group level.
* Whare indicated above, these amounts are refated parly lransactions at company level only.

Armounts owed Lo t.a Financiére Atalian $.A.5 are shown within other loans owed 6 sharehoiders, in non-gurrent borrowings,
Amourts owed by the subsidiangs are shown within amounts owed by group undertakings included within ather loans and
recaivables. Kay managermen! rtemuneration relates 1o Directors and senior managers that make up the axacutive hoard.

The costs associaled with the key management personnel remunegration during the year was £3.4m (2021: £1.9m).

Balances oulstanding at the end of the year for lhe Company with other group undertakings are shown in note 21,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2022

3¢.Capital management

I'ne Group's cbjectives are to ensura sufficient funds are heid o meet all abilities as they fall due and to effectively and
successfully morage any nsks or uncertainties relaling to capital management. The Group manages ils capital to ensure
that enlities i the Graup will be atle 10 conlinue 3 a going coneem while maximising the return to stakeholders through
ihe aplimisation of debl and equity. The key processas usad to the Group to enabile it o meel Hs objectives are as lallows:

«  The Group reasury function maintgins a roiling 3-month cashflow forecasts which are circulated (o the senior board
on & tegular basis.

+  The Group and the divisions within the Group prepars detsited profi, batance sheet and cashilow forecasis o
Decembaor 2022 which shows that the Group will remain profitable, cash generative and will have the available
rescurces 1o pay its kabilities as they fall due.

+ The Group maintains 3 detailed S-year funding model which lracks cash generation, headroom, covenant
rompliance and nther key measures.

s Cash is tightly momtored by the Group to ansure thal current liabilities can be metl as and when they fall due.

The capital strurture of the Group consists of debt per note 22, cash ger nole 25 and anuity per the consciidated statement
of changes in equity The Group's canital sinucture is reviewed regulany. The Group is ro! subject o sxternally imposed
regulaslory capital requirements.

31.Ultimate parent undertaking and controiling party

This is the smallest group for which consofidated statements are prepared, The immediate parent comparty is Alallan Europe
S.A. The ultimale pareni company and the head of the largest group for which consolidaled fnancial statemenis are drawn
up is La Financiére Atalian $.A.3, 2 company incorpocated in France. Consolidated financial statements are available from
111 112 Quas Jules Guesde, 84400 Vitry-sur-Sein, Franca. In the opinion of the Direciors, Mr. F.l. Jullen is the ultimate
controfling party hewever pleass refer to note 31 for changes in the controiling pasty post perod end.

32.Post balance sheet events

O 28th February 2023 (post period and) the Company was acquired by OCS Group investiments Limited {formery CD&R
Madison UK Biden Lid), sn antity formed by Clayton Dubilier & Rice LLP in its capacily as advisor to Clayion Dubilier & Rice
LLC as CDA&R Fund XI {"CD&R"}. This sale formed part of a wider transaction that saw the Atalian Group divest of its
operaticns 0 the UK, Republic of lreland and Asia logether with the Akiron trading group {logether the “Divested
Business™) o CO&R. Shortly before compleling the purchass of lhe Divesied Business CDO&R aisc acquired the entire
1ssued share capital of OCS Group International Lid, the head company of another [acililies management trading group {the
"QCS Group') aperating predominanty in the UK, the Republic of Irefand and Asia Pacific. Management will be pltanning
Tor and exgcuting Ihe integration of the Divested Business with the OCS Group during 2023 and beyond in a move hat will
create one of the world's largest international faciiilies services providers. Trading primarily under the OCS brand going
forward, the new combined and integrated group will have a lumover i excess of £2bn, employing circa 121,000 colleagues
worldwide and operaling in 25 countries. The implications of the re-branding have been assessed by management and
whilst do not have a matedal imgact have been reflected on the results in the 2023 financial statements,

The acouisiton triggered @ change in the funding rmechamsm for the UK and lieiand groupg. The previous loas faciiily in
place with La Financidre Alalian 5 AS has been seftied in full and repiaced with a loan of £183.6m which covenant free and
not re-payable prior to August 2024, In addition the prefergnce shares heid by La Finangiers Alalian S.A.5 have been
acquired by OCS Group Investments Limited (formerly COAR Madison UK Bidco Lid) under the existing ferms.

hes



